
Miami-Dade County Charter Review Task Force Meeting 
Wednesday, May 23, 2012 

Stephen P. Clark Center, Conference Rooms 18-3 and 18-4 
111 N.W. 1st Street 

9:00 a.m. 
 

• Approval of Minutes 
o May 17, 2012 - Charter Review Task Force Meeting 

 
• Chairman’s Items 

 
• County Attorney’s Reports 

o Recommended Technical Amendments to Charter 
 

• CRTF Issues of Study  
o Incorporation / Annexation 
o Governance of Jackson Memorial Hospital  
o Salaries / Outside Employment (Executive Benefits Presentation) 

o Requested Information 
o Petition Process 
o Mayoral Vacancy - Instant Run- Off Elections 
 

• Other Business  
o Feedback received via the website and email  

 
 



 
 

Minutes 

























































Page 27 of 28                                      Clerk’s Summary and Official Minutes                                         May 17, 2012  
Miami-Dade County Charter Review Task Force   

                            
 

Address that UDB issue be codified and have 10 votes on the issue. He expressed that he 
supported a simple majority vote on the UDB issue as it stand now with nine votes and did not 
have a problem with it be codified in the Miami-Dade County Code. Mr. Percival stated would it 
hurt to codify this issue if the Task Force as suggested by Ms. Perry at a two-third (2/3) vote 
requirement.  
 
Mr. Murphy stated he would consider placing it in the Charter. 
 
It was moved by Ms. Aguilar that the Task Force recommend inserting language in the Charter 
regarding the UDB. This motion was seconded by Councilwoman Garcia-Martinez, and the floor 
was opened for discussion. 
 
Mr. Ottinot questioned the time frame for how frequently the UDB issue would be reviewed. 
 
Ms. Perry restated her motion that the current requirement that it took a two-thirds (2/3) vote of 
the County Commission to move the UDB be placed in the Charter. 
 
Mr. Ottinot stated he believed that zoning matters should always be in the Code, and the Charter 
should be very limited.  
 
A brief discussion ensued among the Task Force members regarding the UDB line. 
 
It was moved by Ms. Perry that the Task Force recommend the insertion of language into the 
Charter pertaining to the two-thirds (2/3) vote requirement for the UDB line. This motion was 
seconded by Ms. Aguilar; and upon putting the motion to a vote, the motion passed by a vote of 
11-0. (Mr. Arriola, Mr. Bucelo, Mr. Diaz, Ms. Greer, Mr. Julien, Dr. Richardson, and Mr. 
Trujillo were absent) 
 
Mr. Donald Slesnick announced that he would not be present at the next Task Force meeting 
scheduled for May 23, 2012; and he would like for the Task Force to discuss the Government 
Supervisor Association and the Police Benevolent Association (PBA) letter regarding the 
mayoral veto on the union impasse items. 
 
Chairman Bermudez stated that the May 23, 2012, meeting would address the ethics and the 
Office of the Inspector General. 
 
Mr. Murphy suggested that the Task Force discuss the vacancy of the current Mayor’s office 
before the County conducts a special election or a run-off election. He asked that the Task Force 
consider using the concept of an instant-runoff ballot method if there was a special election that 
needs to fill a vacancy in the office of the Mayor or a county commissioner seat. He informed the 
Task Force members that this method had been used in certain communities like Minneapolis as 
well as other areas.  
 
Chairman Garcia stated that the suggestion made by Mr. Murphy could be placed on the May 23, 
2012, meeting agenda. 





































































lmejia
Text Box
Proposal submitted by Vice Chairperson Evelyn Greer





 
 

County Attorney’s 
Reports 

 



 

TECHNICAL AMENDMENTS - CAO 
 

ARTICLE - 1 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
*  *  * 

 
SECTION 1.05. FORFEITURE OF OFFICE >>OF COUNTY ELECTED AND 
APPOINTED OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES<<. 
 
 

*  *  * 
 
SECTION 1.07. VACANCIES >>IN THE OFFICE OF MAYOR OR COUNTY 
COMMISSIONER<<. 
 
 

*  *  * 
 

ARTICLE - 3 
ELECTIONS 

___________________________________________________ 
 
SECTION 3.01. ELECTION AND COMMENCEMENT OF TERMS OF COUNTY 
 COMMISSIONERS >>AND MAYOR<<. 
 

*  *  * 
 
 

ARTICLE - 5 
ADMINISTRATIVE ORGANIZATION  

AND PROCEDURE 
___________________________________________________ 

 
*  *  * 

 
SECTION 5.08. BOARDS. 
 

*  *  * 
 
 C.  Dade County shall retain all its powers, including but not limited to that of 
eminent domain, in relation to the creation of a county-wide water and sewer system[[, for the 
purpose of cooperating with the Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Authority]]. 
 

ARTICLE - 6 
MUNICIPALITIES 

lmejia
Text Box
Proposed by: CRTFIntroduced on: May 17, 2012Action: Approved on May 17, 2012Final Version: Listed on June 26, 2012 Charter Review Task Force Agenda Package 



 

___________________________________________________ 
 

*  *  * 
 
SECTION 6.03. MUNICIPAL CHARTERS. 
 
 A.  Except as provided in Section [[5.04]] >>6.04<<, any municipality in the county 
may adopt, amend, or revoke a charter for its own government or abolish its existence in the 
following manner. Its governing body shall, within 120 days after adopting a resolution or after 
the certification of a petition of ten percent of the qualified electors of the municipality, draft or 
have drafted by a method determined by municipal ordinance a proposed charter amendment, 
revocation, or abolition which shall be submitted to the electors of the municipalities. Unless an 
election occurs not less than 60 nor more than 120 days after the draft is submitted, the proposal 
shall be submitted at a special election within that time. The governing body shall make copies 
of the proposal available to the electors not less than 30 days before the election. Alternative 
proposals may be submitted. Each proposal approved by a majority of the electors voting on such 
proposal shall become effective at the time fixed in the proposal. 

 
*  *  * 

 
SECTION 6.05. CREATION OF NEW MUNICIPALITIES. 
 
 The Board of County Commissioners and only the Board may authorize the creation of 
new municipalities in the unincorporated areas of the county after hearing the recommendations 
of the Planning Advisory Board, after a public hearing, and after an affirmative vote of a 
majority of the electors voting and residing within the proposed boundaries. The Board of 
County Commissioners shall appoint a charter commission, consisting of five electors residing 
within the proposed boundaries, who shall propose a charter to be submitted to the electors in the 
manner provided in Section [[5.03]] >>6.03<<. The new municipality shall have all the powers 
and rights granted to or not withheld from municipalities by this Charter and the Constitution and 
general laws of the State of Florida. Notwithstanding any provision of this Charter to the 
contrary, with regard to any municipality created after September 1, 2000, the pre-agreed 
conditions between the County and the prospective municipality which are included in the 
municipal charter can only be changed if approved by an affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of 
the members of the Board of County Commissioners then in office, prior to a vote of qualified 
municipal electors.  
 

*  *  * 
 

ARTICLE - 8 
INITIATIVE, REFERENDUM,  

AND RECALL 
___________________________________________________ 

 
*  *  * 

 



 

SECTION 8.02. RECALL.  
 
 Any member of the Board of County Commissioners, the Mayor, >>or<< the Property 
Appraiser[[, the Sheriff or Constable]] maybe removed from office by the electors of the county, 
district, or municipality by which he was chosen. The procedure on a recall petition shall be 
identical with that for an initiatory or referendary petition, except that: 
 

*  *  * 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Issues of Study  
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Hospital Governance Taskforce 
 

Final Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 

May 12, 2011 
 
  

 

HGT 
Miami-Dade County  
Hospital Governance 

Taskforce 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chairperson 
Juan C. Zapata 

 
 

Vice Chairperson 
Susan Leah Dechovitz 

 
 

Members 
Manuel P. Anton, III 

Martha Baker 
Michael Barron 

Jose Cancela 
Lee Chaykin 

Edward J. Feller 
Robert B. Johnson 

Brian E. Keeley 
M. Narendra Kini 

Marisel Losa 
Steven E. Marcus 

Ana Mederos 
Linda S. Quick 

Steven D. Pinkert 
Sharon Pontious 
Lillian Rivera 

Donna E. Shalala 
Steven Sonenreich 

 
 
 



This page intentionally blank 



 

May 12, 2011 
 
 
The Honorable Joe A. Martinez, Chairman and 
  Members, Board of County Commissioners 
Stephen P. Clark Center 
111 N.W. First Street 
Miami, FL  33128 
 
Dear Chairman and Members: 
 
It is with great satisfaction that we submit the Hospital Governance Taskforce 
Final Report with recommendations on alternative models for operating 
Jackson Health System to ensure it has the governing and financial structure 
necessary to fulfill its crucial mission. We all agree that Jackson Health System 
is a vital community resource, and its mission is in jeopardy. We urge that an 
aggressive timetable be set to implement the recommendations of this 
Taskforce and that it be done with a sense of urgency. 
 
The Taskforce’s first meeting was on March 28, 2011, and the last meeting was 
on May 12, 2011, at which time final recommendations and this report were 
approved. We are proud to complete our recommendations and final report 
well within the 90 days authorized by Resolution No. R-30-11. 
 
In our deliberations, we considered and support the recently established 
Financial Recovery Board. As you, Chairman Martinez, noted in your May 2, 
2011 memorandum, the Financial Recovery Board represents “Phase I of a 
recovery plan,” and the Taskforce’s recommendations will be considered for 
Phase II. We urge that the Financial Recovery Board’s term be shortened, to 
coincide with the completion of the implementation of the new governance 
structure. We also urge immediate establishment and funding of an 
implementation committee to prepare for and become the new governing body 
and to ensure continuity in governance and community services. 
 
We thank the Board of County Commissioners for this opportunity to make 
recommendations on such a critically important subject for the health of this 
community. We also extend our special thanks to Commissioner Rebeca Sosa 
for sponsoring the resolution creating this Taskforce. In particular, we thank 
our fellow Taskforce members, the Office of the Commission Auditor, the 
Clerk of the Board, and the County Attorney’s Office for their valuable 
contributions to this Taskforce and this community. 
 
 
c: Juan C. Zapata, Chairman and Members, Hospital Governance Taskforce 
 Harvey Ruvin, Clerk of Courts 
 Alina T. Hudak, County Manager 
 R. A. Cuevas, County Attorney 
 Charles Anderson, Commission Auditor 
 Christopher Agrippa, Transitional Division Chief, Clerk of the Board 

Division 

 

HGT 
Miami-Dade County  
Hospital Governance 

Taskforce 
 
 
 

Chairman 
Juan C. Zapata 

 
Vice Chairperson 

Susan Leah Dechovitz 
 
 
 

Members 
Manuel P. Anton, III 

Martha Baker 
Michael Barron 

Jose Cancela 
Lee Chaykin 

Edward J. Feller 
Robert B. Johnson 

Brian E. Keeley 
M. Narendra Kini 

Marisel Losa 
Steven E. Marcus 

Ana Mederos 
Linda S. Quick 

Steven D. Pinkert 
Sharon Pontious 
Lillian Rivera 

Donna E. Shalala 
Steven D. Sonenreich 

 
 

Website:  
http://www.miamidade.gov/au
ditor/hospital_governance.asp 
 
 
 

Staff Contact: 
S. Donna Palmer, Coordinator 

Office of the Commission Auditor 
(305) 375-4573 

spalmer@miamidade.gov 



 

 

 





 

 

 
 



Miami-Dade County Hospital Governance Taskforce Final Report 
 

i 

Table of Contents 

 

Transmittal Letter 

Table of Contents ............................................................................................................................. i 

Executive Summary ....................................................................................................................... iii 

I. Introduction .............................................................................................................................1 

II. Considerations re: Surtax, Sunshine, Sovereign Immunity, Public Records ..........................4 

III. Presentations & Interviews .....................................................................................................5 

IV. Recommendations ...................................................................................................................6 

V. Comments .............................................................................................................................11 

 
Appendices 
A. Resolution No. R-30-11 
B. Meeting Agendas 
C. Meeting Minutes 
D. List of Trust Decisions Subject to the Commission’s Approval (Prior or Subsequent) or the 

Commission’s Override1 
E. Legal Issues Attendant to Current Financial Exigencies at PHT2 
F. Legal Opinion Regarding Steward’s Proposal for Acquisition of Jackson Health System3 
G. Sunshine Laws, Public Records, Sovereign Immunity and Public Benefit Corporation4 
H. Legal Opinion regarding Resolution R-392-11 Creating a Financial Recovery Board5 
I. Background Information Sheets for Healthcare Systems6 
J. Governance Options Spreadsheet7 
K. South Florida Acute Care Hospitals: Federal, State and Local Funding Sources 

Spreadsheet8 
L. Dissenting View of a Taskforce Member 

                                                 
1 Attachment from Valda Christian, Assistant County Attorney, email of Mon 4/4/2011 3:25 PM 
2 R. A. Cuevas, Jr., County Attorney, memorandum of February 25, 2010 
3 R. A. Cuevas, Jr. County Attorney, memorandum of March 9, 2011 
4 Karon M. Coleman, Assistant County Attorney, memorandum of May 6, 2011 
5 R. A. Cuevas, Jr., County Attorney, memorandum of May 5, 2011 
6 Data compiled by the Office of the Commission Auditor 
7 Data compiled by the Office of the Commission Auditor 
8 Florida Agency for Health Care Administration (AHCA) Medicaid-related Financial Data, FYE2009 



Miami-Dade County Hospital Governance Taskforce Final Report 
 

ii 

This page intentionally blank 



Miami-Dade County Hospital Governance Taskforce Final Report 
 

iii 

Executive Summary 
 
This report from the Miami-Dade County Hospital Governance Taskforce (Taskforce) presents 
recommendations resulting from its considerations of alternative governance models available 
for Miami-Dade County’s Jackson Health System. These recommendations represent the general 
consensus opinion of the Taskforce. 
 
The Taskforce makes eighteen recommendations, including that the recommendations of the 
Taskforce be viewed in its entirety rather than selectively and that an aggressive timetable be set 
for implementing the recommendations. The Taskforce also recommends emphasis on Jackson 
Health System as an integrated healthcare system, rather than a hospital, and that Jackson Health 
System have an organization and governance structure that provides independence, flexibility, and 
nimbleness for the organization. Jackson Health System must have a governance model that 
provides clear lines of accountability to the County government and to the public. Greater 
accountability is required for the fulfillment of the mission within a sound financial framework, 
given budgetary restraints, reduced federal and state funding and competitive pressures. The 
Taskforce recommends that a new governance model, with a diverse board, must be established to 
remain focused on Jackson Health System’s mission and operational and financial performance. 
 
It is the general consensus of the Taskforce that the best governance model for Jackson Health 
System is for the County to establish a new not for profit corporation to manage and operate 
Jackson Health System under contract, reserving to the County only certain enumerated powers 
described in this report or otherwise provided by law. 
 
An implementation committee, with the qualifications, composition and autonomy of the 
proposed not for profit corporation board, should be formed under the County Code and funded 
to perform the work necessary for the implementation of the new governance model. The 
formation of this implementation committee should be immediate and can operate concurrently 
with the Financial Recovery Board (FRB). It is our intent that the FRB sunset as soon as possible 
and that the implementation committee will then become the board for governance of Jackson 
Health System, assuming all the authorities and responsibilities of governance. 
 
Concurrently with creation of this new not for profit corporation, the Taskforce recommends 
creating a Public Health Advisory Committee to ensure accountability on the use of unique 
public funds (½ penny surtax funds; ad valorem, maintenance of effort, etc.)9; and to ensure that 
the safety net mission is being met. It will offer recommendations to the Mayor and Board of 
County Commissioners on improving access, quality and coordination of countywide public 
health. 
 
The Taskforce recommends the not for profit corporation have a nine member board of directors, 
initially appointed by the Mayor and the Board of County Commissioners, serving staggered 
three-year terms with a three term limit. The Mayor’s appointments would be subject to 
ratification by the Board of County Commissioners. For subsequent appointments, the not for 

                                                 
9 There may be changes necessary to applicable law including but not limited to the Code of Miami-Dade County 
and State statutes to make the 1/2 penny surtax funds and ad valorem funds available to a not for profit corporation 
or other entity; a voter referendum may be necessary as well. See Appendices F & G. 



Miami-Dade County Hospital Governance Taskforce Final Report 
 

iv 

profit corporation board will nominate and elect its own membership. Additionally, the Board 
shall have the power to appoint non-voting ex officio members.  
 
The Taskforce recommends the initial board of directors be comprised of at least one physician, 
one lawyer, two CFOs/CPAs, and one insurance executive preferably with actuarial experience. 
The remainder shall be made up of members with extensive backgrounds and expertise in such 
fields as healthcare executive management, general business, nursing, labor relations, and/or 
community relations/community affairs.  
 
Furthermore, the Taskforce recommends that the governing board reflect and embrace a rigorous 
conflict of interest policy which includes a heightened standard, eliminating both the perception 
of as well as any actual conflict of interest for board members. Board members shall have no 
conflicts of interest for one year before or after serving personally, or as stakeholders in the 
outcome of their decisions. The governing body’s sole interest should be the future of Jackson 
Health System.  
 
The immediate family10 of a member of the board of Jackson Health System, and organizations 
in which an immediate family member is employed, has control of, or has a material interest in, 
shall not be engaged to do business with or provide services to Jackson Health System. An 
immediate family member of a member of the board shall not be employed in a management 
capacity as a director or above at Jackson Health System. Additionally, the immediate family of 
the member of the board shall not be employed as senior management, have control of, or have a 
material interest in an organization that competes with Jackson Health System. 
 
Board member training shall include ethics training. 
 
This heightened standard applies to both the initial and future boards. 
 
The full list of Taskforce recommendations is included in the body of this report. 

                                                 
10 The term “immediate family” means the spouse, parents, step-parents, brothers and sisters, step-brothers and step-
sisters, children and step-children of a governing board member. 



Miami-Dade County Hospital Governance Taskforce Final Report 
 

1 

I. Introduction 
 

A. Mission.  The Miami-Dade County Hospital Governance Taskforce (Taskforce) was 
created by Board of County Commissioners (BCC) Resolution No. R-30-11, adopted 
January 20, 2011, which, in part, cited concerns that the Miami-Dade County “Public 
Health Trust is in the midst of an economic crisis that appears to be due in large part to 
its governing structure; and …the Miami-Dade County Grand Jury in its report dated 
August 5th, 2010 specifically determined that the Public Health Trust’s ‘governance 
must be changed.’” In Resolution No. R-30-11, the BCC directed the Taskforce to: 

 
Study possible models for the governance of the Public Health Trust, including but 
not limited to (a) operation of the Public Health Trust by a private, not-for-profit 
501(c)(3) organization with a board of doctors, nurses, community leaders, and 
health care professionals, as was done, for example, with Tampa General Hospital; 
(b) operation of the Public Health Trust by an independent tax district, as was done 
for the North and South Broward Hospital districts; (c) other models, perhaps 
blending these models, as the Taskforce may decide; (d) and other 
recommendations regarding the governance and financing of the Public Health 
Trust, as the Taskforce may decide. In its deliberations and recommendations, the 
Taskforce shall at all times keep in mind the importance of protecting the interests 
of the taxpayers of our community. The Taskforce shall complete its work and file 
an executive summary of its recommendations with the Clerk of the Board no later 
than 60 days from the first meeting of the Taskforce and will file a final report no 
later than 90 days from the first meeting of the Taskforce. The Taskforce will cease 
to exist 100 days from the first meeting of the Taskforce.  

 
The resulting timeline, based on the Taskforce’s initial meeting on March 28, 2011, 
required the Taskforce to file an executive summary no later than May 27, 2011 and a 
final report no later than June 26, 2011. Also, the Taskforce is to cease to exist on July 
6, 2011. 

 
A copy of Resolution No. R-30-11 is attached as Appendix A of this report. 

 
B. Membership.  The Taskforce consisted of twenty members appointed by individuals or 

organizations designated in Resolution No. R-30-11. At its first meeting on March 28, 
2011, the Taskforce selected Mr. Juan C. Zapata as Chairman and Ms. Susan Dechovitz 
as Vice Chairperson. The membership list of the Taskforce is listed in Table 1. 

 
  



Miami-Dade County Hospital Governance Taskforce Final Report 
 

2 

Table 1. 
Hospital Governance Taskforce Membership List 
Member Affiliation Chosen By Name 
Chief Executive Officer of Baptist 
Healthcare System, Inc. or a member of 
its executive management team 

Chief Executive Officer  Brian E. Keeley, President/CEO 
Baptist Health South Florida, Inc. 
 

Chief Executive Officer of Miami-
Children’s Hospital or a member of its 
executive management team 

Chief Executive Officer  Dr. M. Narendra Kini, President/CEO 
Miami-Children’s Hospital 
 

Chief Executive Officer of HCA Kendall 
Regional Medical Center or a member of 
its executive management team 

Chief Executive Officer  Lee Chaykin , CEO 
Kendall Regional Medical Center 
 

Chief Executive Officer of either Hialeah, 
Northshore Medical Center and Palmetto 
General Hospital  or a member of its 
executive management team 

CEO of Tenet Healthsystems 
Medical, Inc.  

Ana Mederos, CEO 
Palmetto General Hospital 
 

Chief Executive Officer Mt. Sinai Medical 
Center or a member of its executive 
management team 

Chief Executive Officer  Steven D. Sonenreich, President/CEO 
Mount Sinai Medical Center 
 

Chief Executive Officer Mercy Hospital or 
a member of its executive management 
team 

Chief Executive Officer  Dr. Manuel P. Anton, III 
President/CEO, Mercy Hospital 
 

Administrator ,or appointee, of the Florida 
Department of Health-Miami-Dade 
County Health Department  

Administrator  Lillian Rivera, RN, MSN, Ph.D., 
Administrator, Miami-Dade County 
Health Department 
 

State Attorney of Miami-Dade County, or 
designee  

State Attorney  Susan Leah Dechovitz 
Assistant State Attorney 
Miami-Dade State Attorney’s Office 

Individual appointed by the Mayor  Mayor  Jose Cancela, Principal 
Hispanic USA, Inc. 

Individual appointed by the BCC  Board of County 
Commissioners  

Steven Pinkert, MD, JD, MBA 
Pinkert & Marsh, P.A. 

Individual appointed by the BCC  Board of County 
Commissioners  

Marisel Losa, President/CEO 
Health Council of South Florida 

Individual appointed by the BCC  Board of County 
Commissioners  

Donna E. Shalala, President 
University of Miami 

Individual appointed by the BCC  Board of County 
Commissioners  

Juan C. Zapata, Director 
Pazos, Robaina & Zapata Management 

Individual appointed by the BCC  Board of County 
Commissioners  

Edward J. Feller, MD 

Representative of unions at the Public 
Health Trust 

Board of County 
Commissioners  

Martha Baker, RN, President 
SEIU Healthcare Florida, Local 1991 

Physician who is a member of the Medical 
Executive Committee of Jackson 
Memorial Hospital 

Other members of the task force Dr. Michael Barron, President 
Medical Executive Committee of JMH 
 

Representative or designee from the 
National Association of Public Hospitals 
and Health Systems (NAPH) based in 
Washington, D.C. 

National Association of Public 
Hospitals  

Robert Johnson, Representative 
National Association of Public 
Hospitals & Health Systems 
 



Miami-Dade County Hospital Governance Taskforce Final Report 
 

3 

Table 1. 
Hospital Governance Taskforce Membership List 
Member Affiliation Chosen By Name 
Representative of the Florida Nursing 
Association 

Florida Nursing Association  Dr. Sharon Pontious, Representative 
Florida Nurse’s Association 
 

Chief Executive Officer of the Health 
Foundation of South Florida or a member 
of its executive management team 

Chief Executive Officer  Dr. Steven E. Marcus, President/CEO 
Health Foundation of South Florida 
 

Chief Executive Officer of the South 
Florida Hospital & Healthcare 
Association or a member of its executive 
management team 

Chief Executive Officer  Linda S. Quick, President 
South Florida Hospital & Healthcare 
Association 
 

 
C. Background. 

 
Jackson Health System is an integrated healthcare delivery system licensed for 2,200 
beds, has a budget of $2 billion dollars, and is comprised of six hospitals across three 
campuses. It includes a health plan, primary care clinics, nursing homes, and 
responsibility for the care of inmates. It is the largest public system in the United States 
as reported by Becker Hospital Review in August 2010. Jackson Health System had 
historically been governed by the Public Health Trust, a dedicated team of citizen 
volunteers appointed by the Miami-Dade Board of County Commissioners.11  Jackson 
Health System ensures that all residents of Miami-Dade County receive a single high 
standard of care, regardless of their ability to pay. It is an academic teaching hospital 
with a long-standing relationship with the University of Miami and a more recent 
affiliation with Florida International University. 

 
As cited in Resolution No. R-30-11, the Final Report of the Miami-Dade County Grand 
Jury, Fall Term A.D. 2009, re Jackson Health System, filed August 5, 2010, the Grand 
Jury determined that the Public Health Trust/Jackson Health System’s “governance 
system must be changed” (p.3).12 Additionally, it made more than a dozen other 
recommendations, pp. 32-33, concerning Jackson Health System governance and 
oversight, including a recommendation for the creation of a group, such as this 
Taskforce, to study the best governance model for Jackson Health System. 
 
Another document, Recommendations Regarding Structure and Governance; Report 
for Jackson Health System, National Association of Public Hospitals and Health 
Systems, January 13, 2008, had been prepared two years prior to the Grand Jury 
report.13 This document had already provided the Jackson Health System with 

                                                 
11 Resolution No. R-392-11, adopted May 3, 2011 by the Board of County Commissioners, implemented an assistive 
measure, pursuant to Section 25(A)-9(C)5 of the Miami-Dade County Code, in the form of establishing a Financial 
Recovery Board to help resolve the financial sustainability conditions threatening the Public Health Trust 
12 Available online, http://www.miamisao.com/publications/grand_jury/2000s/gj2009f.pdf 
13 Available online, http://www.miamidade.gov/auditor/library/Recommendations_Regarding_Structure_ 
Governance_JHS-NAPH.pdf 



Miami-Dade County Hospital Governance Taskforce Final Report 
 

4 

extensive information on potentially desirable governance alternatives, much of which 
remained applicable to the Taskforce’s deliberations. 
 

D. Process 
 
Early in its deliberations, the Taskforce considered the appropriateness of initiating a 
fact-finding investigation regarding Jackson Health System’s financial and operational 
difficulties. The Taskforce decided to focus on the charge of examining alternative 
governance models which would address issues noted in the previously issued reports, 
thereby making it feasible to accomplish the Taskforce’s mission within the timeframes 
specified in Resolution No. R-30-11. 
 
Taskforce deliberations and considerations included input from multiple sources, 
including: national organizations, interviews with selected healthcare system executives 
from many parts of the country, Jackson Health System executives, available reference 
materials from professional literature, background research by staff, and extensive input 
from the Taskforce members themselves. 

 
E. Governance Models – The Taskforce considered each of the following governance 

models. 
 

a. Direct Operational Control by the County. 
 

b. Direct Operational Control by a University. 
 
c. Public Health Trust with Increased Autonomy. 
 
d. Hospital Authority or Public Benefit Corporation. 

 
e. Taxing District. 

 
f. Not for Profit Organization formed by the County. 

 
g. Hybrid or Multiple Structures. 

 
h. For Profit Corporation Governance. 

 
II. Considerations re: Surtax, Sunshine, Sovereign Immunity, Public Records 
 

There was broad consensus in the Taskforce on the imperative of retaining sovereign 
immunity and obtaining appropriate exemptions from the Sunshine Law and Public 
Records requirements so as to enable the new entity to be more competitive in the 
healthcare marketplace. Nevertheless, the Taskforce recognized the challenges presented 
by applying government laws such as sovereign immunity to the new not for profit 
corporation. The relationship between Sunshine Law, Public Records Law, and sovereign 
immunity requirements is complex. Appendices F & G provide guidance on this subject. 



Miami-Dade County Hospital Governance Taskforce Final Report 
 

5 

 
There was equally broad consensus in the Taskforce that maintaining eligibility for the 
existing ½ penny surtax [Dade County Health Care Improvement Surtax for Jackson 
Memorial Hospital adopted by referendum in 1991] and ad valorem/general fund support is 
essential. The Taskforce felt that continued eligibility for the surtax could be dealt with 
through separate legislative action or contract provisions, as necessary. 

 
III. Presentations and Interviews – Presentations to and interviews by the Taskforce are listed 

in Table 2. Additional details are available in the minutes of each meeting. 
 

Table 2 
Presentations and Interviews 
Meeting Presenter Subject 
March 28, 2011 Commissioner Rebeca Sosa, Board of 

County Commissioners 
Overview of Taskforce background and mission 

 Michael Murawski, Advocate, 
Commission on Ethics and Public 

Conflicts of interest and Code of Ethics 

 Karon Coleman and Valda Christian, 
Assistant County Attorneys 

Sunshine Law requirements, Taskforce responsibilities 
and available reference materials 

 John Copeland III, Chairman, Public 
Health Trust 

Public Health Trust overview 

 Eneida O. Roldan, MD, MPH, MBA, 
President & CEO, Jackson Health System 

Jackson Health System overview, problems and needs 

 Ted Shaw, FHFMA, CPA, Chief 
Transition Officer, Jackson Health System 

Key operating indicators and financial outlook 

 Pascal J. Goldschmidt, MD, Dean, 
University of Miami Miller School of 
Medicine 

Relationship between University of Miami Miller 
School of Medicine and Jackson Health System 

April 7, 2011 Larry S. Gage, President, National 
Association of Public Hospitals and Health 
Systems/Partner, Ropes & Gray LLP 

“Models for Organizational & Structural Reform" 
presentation 

 Jorge L. Arrizurieta, Member, Public 
Health Trust 

Public Health Trust overview and need for change in 
governance structure 

April 14, 2011 Duane J. Fitch, CPA, MBA, Senior 
Partner, The Sibery Group, LLC 

“Hospital Governance Taskforce (HGT) Presentation"; 
issues and observations relating to governance and the 
Public Health Trust 

 Tom Traylor, Vice President of State, 
Local, and Federal Programs, Boston 
Medical Center, Boston, MA 

Teleconference interview 

 Johnese Spisso, Chief Health Systems 
Officer, UW Medicine - Harborview 
Medical Center, Seattle, WA 

Teleconference interview 

April 21, 2011 Linda Quick, CEO, South Florida Hospital 
& Healthcare Association/Taskforce 
Member 

Comparison of Federal, State and Local Hospital 
Funding Sources 

 Elizabeth Reidy, General Counsel, Cook 
County Health & Hospitals System, 
Chicago, IL 

Teleconference interview 



Miami-Dade County Hospital Governance Taskforce Final Report 
 

6 

Table 2 
Presentations and Interviews 
Meeting Presenter Subject 
 John Schunhoff, Chief Deputy Director, 

Los Angeles County Department of Health 
Services, Los Angeles, CA 

Teleconference interview 

 Gerard Grimaldi, Vice President, Health 
Policy & Government Relations, Truman 
Medical Centers, Kansas City, MO 

Teleconference interview 

April 28, 2011 Dr. John R. Combes, President and COO, 
Center for Healthcare Governance 

Hospital governance 

 Carlos Migoya, President and CEO Elect, 
Jackson Health System 

Introduction and discussion 

May 5, 2011 Karon M. Coleman, Assistant County 
Attorney 

Sunshine Laws, Public Records, Sovereign Immunity 
and Public Benefit Corporation 

 
IV. Recommendations 

 
Overview 
 
Jackson Health System is a vital community resource that faces tremendous challenges, 
including finances and its ability to compete in a rapidly evolving healthcare industry. 
Jackson Health System’s mission is in jeopardy under the status quo. Strong steps are needed 
to address these challenges and to ensure Jackson Health System’s future as an integrated 
healthcare system. 
 
The basic principles underlining the Taskforce recommendations recognize that the Jackson 
Health System must have a governance structure that provides independence, flexibility, and 
nimbleness. The new governance model must provide clear lines of accountability to the 
County government and the public and fulfill their mission within a sound financial 
framework, given budgetary restraints, reduced federal and state funding and competitive 
pressures. In this climate, a new governance model with a more diverse board must be 
established to remain focused on Jackson Health System’s mission and operational and 
financial performance. 
 
Furthermore, Taskforce recommendations should be viewed in their entirety rather than 
selectively; many recommendations are coupled with others.  
 
There was general consensus that the best way to address the concerns would be the creation 
of a new not for profit corporation to manage and operate the Jackson Health System. The 
creation of a not for profit corporation that retains the missions of a safety net health system 
and an academic teaching hospital has clear analogies in Florida (Tampa General) and in 
other states (Boston Medical Center, Grady Memorial, Truman Medical Centers, and others).  

 
Issues to consider for the successful implementation of a not for profit model include the 
degree to which the County can legally transfer all of the necessary financial and operating 
autonomy (including personnel, financial and procurement autonomy) to the new 



Miami-Dade County Hospital Governance Taskforce Final Report 
 

7 

corporation. See Appendices F & G for reviews of the issues related to the continued 
availability of the ½ penny sales surtax and ad valorem/general fund support upon changing 
from a county public general hospital to any other type of entity. There may also be 
implications for sovereign immunity and open government laws (Sunshine Law and Public 
Records Act) when transitioning from a government-run health system to a not for profit run 
health system. See Appendix G regarding a discussion of Sunshine Law, Public Records Act 
and Sovereign Immunity.  

 
There was general consensus on creating a Public Health Advisory Committee to ensure 
accountability on the use of unique public funds (½ penny surtax funds, ad valorem/general 
fund support, etc.)14 and to ensure that the safety net mission is being met. It will offer 
recommendations to the Mayor and Board of County Commissioners on improving access, 
quality and coordination of countywide public health.  
 
For example, in formation of the Boston Medical Center, the same legislation that formed the 
Boston Medical Center also created the Boston Public Health Commission to continue the 
city’s public health responsibilities. The Public Health Commission’s “mission is to protect, 
promote, and preserve the health and well-being of all Boston residents, particularly the most 
vulnerable.”15 The Public Health Commission was encouraged to establish an advisory 
committee to act as an oversight entity to monitor the providing of health care in Boston, 
particularly to the city’s vulnerable populations. 
 
Mission 
 
1. Set forth a clearly stated mission statement & vision for the health system that reaffirms 

Jackson Health System’s roles as a safety net hospital, academic teaching hospital, and 
integrated healthcare system with multiple academic relationships. 
 

Board Composition 
 
2. Nine members, with five initial appointments made by the Mayor and four initial 

appointments made by the Board of County Commissioners. The members shall serve 
staggered three-year terms with a three term limit: three shall be appointed for three-year 
terms, three for two-year terms, and three for one-year terms, with duration of initial 
terms determined by lottery. For subsequent appointments, the not for profit corporation 
board will nominate and elect its own membership.  
 

3. The Taskforce recommends the initial board of directors be comprised of at least one 
physician, one lawyer, two CFOs/CPAs, and one insurance executive preferably with 
actuarial experience. The remainder shall be made up of members with extensive 
backgrounds and expertise in such fields as healthcare executive management, general 
business, nursing, labor relations, and/or community relations/community affairs.  

                                                 
14 There may be changes necessary to applicable law including but not limited to the Code of Miami-Dade County 
and State statutes to make the 1/2 penny surtax funds and ad valorem funds available to a not for profit corporation 
or other entity; a voter referendum may be necessary as well. See Appendices F & G. 
15 Extract from Boston Public Health Commission website, www.bphc.org/about/officedirector/Pages/Home.aspx 



Miami-Dade County Hospital Governance Taskforce Final Report 
 

8 

 
4. We urge inclusion of diversity in the governing body. 

 
5. The new governing board shall have the power to appoint non-voting ex officio members 

at its sole discretion. 
 

  



Miami-Dade County Hospital Governance Taskforce Final Report 
 

9 

Ethics 
 
6. The governing board shall reflect and embrace a rigorous conflict of interest policy which 

includes a heightened standard, eliminating both the perception of as well as any actual 
conflict of interest for board members. Board members shall have no conflicts of interest 
for one year before or after serving, personally or as stakeholders, in the outcome of their 
decisions. The governing body’s sole interest should be the future of Jackson Health 
System.  
 
The immediate family16 of a member of the board of Jackson Health System, and 
organizations in which the immediate family is employed, has control of, or has a 
material interest in, shall not be engaged to do business with or provide services to 
Jackson Health System. The immediate family of a member of the board shall not be 
employed in a management capacity as a director or above at Jackson Health System. 
Additionally, the immediate family of the member of the board shall not be employed as 
senior management, have control of, or have a material interest in an organization that 
competes with Jackson Health System. 
 
Board member training shall include ethics training. 
 
This heightened standard applies to both the initial and future boards. 
 

Legal Structure and Governance 
 
7. Establish a new not for profit corporation to manage and operate Jackson Health System, 

reserving to the County only certain enumerated powers described herein or otherwise 
provided by law. 
 

8. Provide sovereign immunity. Every effort should be made to structure the not for profit 
corporation in such a way so as to preserve the applicability of the sovereign immunity 
statute, including pursuing legislative changes. For example, the governing body of 
Jackson Health System and the County should investigate the possibility of pursuing 
legislative changes similar to the changes approved for Shands Teaching Hospital and 
Clinics in the 2011 Florida legislative session, if legally appropriate.17 
 

9. Concurrently with creation of this new not for profit corporation, the Taskforce 
recommends creating a Public Health Advisory Committee to ensure accountability on 
the use of unique public funds (½ penny surtax funds; ad valorem/general fund support, 

                                                 
16 The term “immediate family” means the spouse, parents, step-parents, brothers and sisters, step-brothers and step-
sisters, children and step-children, of a governing board member. 
17 CS/CS/HB 395 amended Section 1004.41 of Florida Statutes, pertaining to Shands Teaching Hospital and Clinics, 
and provided sovereign immunity specifically for Shands. However, it should be noted that Shands Hospital is a 
creation of the state, pursuant to Section 1004.41 of Florida Statutes while Jackson Health System is a county 
created health system.  



Miami-Dade County Hospital Governance Taskforce Final Report 
 

10 

etc.)18; and to ensure that the safety net mission is being met. It will offer 
recommendations to the Mayor and Board of County Commissioners on improving 
access, quality and coordination of countywide public health.  
 
The Public Health Advisory Committee shall include members appointed by the Mayor 
and the Board of County Commissioners. One of the persons appointed shall be the 
Director of the Miami-Dade County Health Department or the Director’s designee. The 
other members shall have extensive expertise in healthcare issues and shall not be County 
or Jackson Health System employees. 

 
10. The Jackson Health System auditor shall be required to annually provide certification and 

explanation that all ad valorem/general fund support and surtax revenues that are received 
are used for the purposes for which they were  legally intended. 
 

11. Ensure Jackson Health System remains eligible for Disproportionate Share Hospital 
(DSH) funding. 

 
Authorities and Responsibilities Retained by the Board of County Commissioners 
 
12. Retain ownership and be responsible for the maintenance of the real property19 currently 

owned by the County and used by Jackson Health System. 
 

13. Retain the responsibility for approval of any sale, transfer, destruction, replacement, 
abandonment, or related disposition of currently County-owned real property as referred 
to in paragraph 12 above. 
 

14. To the extent possible, retain the responsibility for approval of any issuance of capital 
bonds under the authority of the County requested by Jackson Health System. 
 

Authorities and Responsibilities Reserved to Health System Governing Board 
 

15. All other authority and responsibility not specifically reserved to the County shall be 
exercised by the governing board including but not limited to:  
− Hire, fire, evaluate, and set compensation of the health system’s CEO; 
− Establish by-laws; 
− Make decisions regarding human resources, purchasing, growth or reduction 

decisions of medical services, contracts and payments to academic institutions, etc.; 
− Develop and establish policies; 
− Conduct long range strategic planning; 
− Approve pay and compensation policies for its executive team and policies for 

employed physicians and employees; 
                                                 
18 There may be changes necessary to applicable law including but not limited to the Code of Miami-Dade County 
and State statutes to make the 1/2 penny surtax funds and ad valorem funds available to a not for profit corporation 
or other entity; a voter referendum may be necessary as well. See Appendices F & G. 
19 Currently, the Public Health Trust has the responsibility to maintain the facilities, not the County.  See 25A-4(d) 
of Miami-Dade County Code.  



Miami-Dade County Hospital Governance Taskforce Final Report 
 

11 

− Meet all local, state and national standards governing hospitals and health systems; 
− Annually, provide to the Mayor and Board of County Commissioners audited 

financial reports and an annual report on the operations and services of Jackson 
Health System with particular emphasis on care, quality and services provided to 
indigent residents of Miami-Dade County; 

− Approve the health systems operating, capital equipment and facilities budgets; 
− Develop and enter into affiliation agreements with academic and other organization 

necessary to carry out the mission of the health system; and 
− Approve labor and collective bargaining agreements. 

 
Culture 
 
16. Quoting from a recent study by the Health Research & Educational Trust in partnership 

with the American Hospital Association, 
Creating a culture of performance excellence, accountability for results, and 
leadership execution are the keys to success….a culture of performance excellence 
and accountability for results was strongly exhibited during the interviews with the 
high performing health systems. This was best defined through cultural markers such 
as: focusing on continuous improvement, driving towards dramatic improvement or 
perfection versus incremental change, emphasizing patient-centeredness, adopting a 
philosophy that embraces internal and external transparency with regard to 
performance, and a having a clear set of defined values and expectations that form 
the basis for accountability of results. The other finding connected with the culture of 
performance excellence was a disciplined and persistent focus by leadership on 
execution and implementation to achieve the lofty goals. The culture of performance 
and excellence was strongly connected to leadership’s execution doctrine.20 

 
Adapting this study’s findings to Jackson Health System’s situation, the Taskforce 
recommendation is that the governing body shall focus on continuous improvement, 
driving towards dramatic improvement or perfection versus incremental change, 
emphasizing patient-centeredness, adopting a philosophy that embraces both internal and 
external transparency, which include such things as performance, efficiency, innovation, 
and a having a clear set of defined values and expectations that form the basis for 
accountability for results, innovation, strategic vision, sustaining the mission and values. 

 
Implementation 
 
17. We urge that an aggressive timetable be set to implement the recommendations of this 

Taskforce and that it be done with a sense of urgency. 
 

18. An implementation committee, with the qualifications, composition and autonomy of the 
proposed not for profit corporation board, should be formed under the County Code and 

                                                 
20 Yonek J., Hines S., and Joshi M. A Guide to Achieving High Performance in Multi-Hospital Health Systems. p. 1, 
Health Research & Educational Trust, Chicago, IL. March 2010. Available online: http://www.hret.org/quality/ 
projects/resources/highperformance.pdf  

 



Miami-Dade County Hospital Governance Taskforce Final Report 
 

12 

funded to perform the work necessary for the implementation of the new governance 
model. The implementation committee will then become the board for governance of 
Jackson Health System. The formation of this implementation committee should be 
immediate and can operate concurrently with the FRB. It is our intent that the FRB sunset 
as soon as possible and that the implementation committee will then become the board 
for governance of Jackson Health System, assuming all the authorities and 
responsibilities of governance. 

 
V. Comments 
 

The Taskforce recommends that the Sunshine Law and Public Records Act (applicable to 
public hospitals/healthcare) be amended as necessary to enable a more sustainable business 
model.



Resolution No. R-30-11

Appendix A

A-1



Appendix A

A-2



R-30-11

Appendix A

A-3



Appendix A

A-4



Appendix A

A-5



Appendix A

A-6



Appendix A

A-7



This page intentionally blank 

Appendix A

A-8



  REVISED 3/25/11 

HGT related Information can be found at http://www.miamidade.gov/auditor/hospital_governance.asp 
 

Miami-Dade County Hospital Governance Taskforce (HGT) 
 

Meeting of Monday, March 28, 2011 at 8:30 a.m. 
The Beacon Council  

80 SW 8th Street, Suite 2400 
Miami, Florida 

  

 
AGENDA 

 
 Moderator     Mr. Charles Anderson, Commission Auditor  
 
1. Self Introduction of Members 
 
2. Opening Statement    The Hon. Rebeca Sosa, Commissioner, District 6  
    
3. 

Commission on Ethics & Public Trust Mr. Robert Meyers, Executive Director 
Presentations  

County Attorney’s Office    Mr. Eugene Shy & Ms. Valda Christian, Asst.  
       County Attorneys  

Overview of the Public Health Trust (PHT)  Mr. John H Copeland, III, Chairperson, PHT 
Historical Overview & Presentation on  
Jackson Health System (JHS)   Dr. Eneida O. Roldan, President & Chief Executive  

       Officer, JHS & Mr. Ted Shaw, Chief Transition  
       Officer, JHS  

 
4. Relationship between UM and JHS   Dr. Pascal J. Goldschmidt, Dean, Medical School,  
       UM & Mr. Ted Shaw, Chief Transition Officer, JHS 

 
5. Organization and Structure  of Task Force     

- Selection of Chair and Vice Chair 
- Selection of additional HGT member (R-30-11, Sec. 4 #12) 
- Meeting Schedules 
- Decision: Who should write final  
               recommendations for BCC? 
 

6. Any Other Matters 
 
7. Closing Remarks    Newly Selected Chairperson 

 

Appendix B

B-1

http://www.miamidade.gov/auditor/hospital_governance.asp�


 
   
  REVISED 

Meeting of Thursday, April 7, 2011 at 3:00 p.m. 
  

HOSPITAL GOVERNANCE TASKFORCE (HGT) 
 

THE BEACON COUNCIL 
80 SW 8th Street, Suite 2400 

Miami, Florida 
 

 
AGENDA 

  
I. ROLL CALL 

 
 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - Meeting of March 28, 2011 
 
 

III. OPENING  REMARKS - Chairperson Juan C. Zapata 
- Announce New Designee – NAPH 
- Highlights from Sunshine Meeting held Tuesday, April 5, 2011 

 
 

IV. ACTION ITEM 
 

A. SELECTION OF NEW MEMBER - (a physician who is a member of 
the medical executive committee of Jackson Memorial Hospital) 

 
 

V. PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Mr. Larry Gage, President, NAPH  
Question & Answer Session 
 

B. Ms. Karon Coleman, Assistant County Attorney  
Question & Answer Session 
 
 

VI. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

A. WHETHER THE HGT SHOULD SEND A LETTER TO 
GOVERNOR RICK SCOTT – Requesting the $35 million in federal 
stimulus money for Jackson Memorial Hospital 
 

B. RESIGNATION LETTER FROM DR. MARK  C. ROGERS, 
FORMER PHT MEMBER – (Added at the request of HGT Member Jose 
Cancela) 
 
 

VII. OTHER MATTERS 
 
A. FUTURE MEETING LOCATIONS 

 
 

VIII.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 

HGT 
Miami-Dade County  
Hospital Governance 

Taskforce 
 
 
 
 

Chairperson 
Juan C. Zapata 

 
Vice Chairperson 
Susan Dechovitz 

 
 
 

Members 
Manual P. Anton, III 

Martha Baker 
Jose Cancela 
Lee Chaykin 

Ed Feller 
Robert Johnson 
Brian E. Keeley 

M. Narendra Kini 
Marisel Losa 

Steven Marcus 
Ana Mederos 
Linda Quick 

Steven Pinkert 
Sharon Pontious 
Lillian Rivera 
Donna Shalala 

Steven Sonenreich 
 
 
 

Website:  
http://www.miamidade.gov/audit
or/hospital_governance.asp 
 
 
 

Staff Contact: 
S. Donna Palmer, Coordinator 

Office of the Commission Auditor 
(305) 375-2524 

spalmer@miamidade.gov 
 

Appendix B

B-2

mailto:spalmer@miamidade.gov�


 
   
  REVISED 4/14/11 

Meeting of Thursday, April 14, 2011 at 3:00 p.m. 
  

HOSPITAL GOVERNANCE TASKFORCE (HGT) 
State Attorney’s Office 
1350 NW 12th Avenue 

4th Floor Conference Room 
Miami, Florida 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
  

I. ROLL CALL 
 
 

II. OPENING  REMARKS - Chairperson Juan C. Zapata 
 
 

III. PRESENTATION 
 

A.  The Sibery Group, LLC 
 Mr. Duane J. Fitch, CPA, MBA, Senior Partner 
 

IV. TELECONFERENCE  INTERVIEWS 
 
A. Boston Medical Center

Mr. Tom Traylor, Vice President of State, Local, and Federal   
Programs   
 

, Boston, Massachusetts 

B. UW Medicine - Harborview Medical Center

 

, Washington, Seattle 
Ms. Johnese Spisso, Chief Health Systems Officer 

 
V. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
A. RESIGNATION LETTER FROM DR. MARK  C. ROGERS, 

FORMER PHT MEMBER – (Added at the request of HGT Member Jose 
Cancela) 
 

B. JUNIPER ADVISORY- FIRM OVERVIEW – (Added by HGT Chair 
Juan Zapata) 
 
 

VI. OTHER MATTERS 
 
 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

HGT 
Miami-Dade County  
Hospital Governance 

Taskforce 
 
 
 

Chairperson 
Juan C. Zapata 

 
Vice Chairperson 
Susan Dechovitz 

 
 
 

Members 
Manual P. Anton, III 

Martha Baker 
Michael Barron 

Jose Cancela 
Lee Chaykin 

Ed Feller 
Robert Johnson 
Brian E. Keeley 

M. Narendra Kini 
Marisel Losa 

Steven Marcus 
Ana Mederos 
Linda Quick 

Steven Pinkert 
Sharon Pontious 
Lillian Rivera 
Donna Shalala 

Steven Sonenreich 
 
 

Website:  
http://www.miamidade.gov/audito
r/hospital_governance.asp 
 
 
 

Staff Contact: 
S. Donna Palmer, Coordinator 

Office of the Commission Auditor 
(305) 375-4573 

spalmer@miamidade.gov 
 

Appendix B

B-3

mailto:spalmer@miamidade.gov�


Meeting of Thursday, April 21, 2011 at 3:00 p.m. 
  

HOSPITAL GOVERNANCE TASKFORCE (HGT) 
The Beacon Council 

80 SW 8th Street, 24th Floor 
(The Chase Building - Brickell Area) 

Miami, Florida 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
  

I. ROLL CALL 
 
 

II. OPENING  REMARKS - Chairperson Juan C. Zapata 
 
 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Meeting of April 7, 2011 
 
 

IV. TELECONFERENCE INTERVIEWS (30 min. each) 
 
A. Cook County Health & Hospitals System

B. 

, Chicago, IL 
Ms. Elizabeth Reidy, General Counsel 
 
LA County Department of Health Services,
Mr. John Schunhoff, Chief Deputy Director 
 

 Los Angeles, CA 

C. Truman Medical Centers,
Mr. Gerard Grimaldi, Vice President, Health Policy & Government 
Relations 

 Kansas City, MO 

 
 

V. OVERVIEW (10 min.) 
 
A.  Comparison of Federal, State and Local Hospital Funding Sources 
  (At the request of HGT Member Linda Quick)  
 
 

VI. WORKING  ITEM (remainder of meeting) 
 

A. Discuss/Draft Preliminary Recommendations  
 
 

VII.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 

HGT 
Miami-Dade County  
Hospital Governance 

Taskforce 
 
 
 

Chairperson 
Juan C. Zapata 

 
 

Vice Chairperson 
Susan Dechovitz 

 
 

Members 
Manuel P. Anton, III 

Martha Baker 
Michael Barron 

Jose Cancela 
Lee Chaykin 

Ed Feller 
Robert Johnson 
Brian E. Keeley 

M. Narendra Kini 
Marisel Losa 

Steven Marcus 
Ana Mederos 
Linda Quick 

Steven Pinkert 
Sharon Pontious 
Lillian Rivera 
Donna Shalala 

Steven Sonenreich 
 
 

Website:  
http://www.miamidade.gov/audit
or/hospital_governance.asp 
 
 
 

Staff Contact: 
S. Donna Palmer, Coordinator 

Office of the Commission Auditor 
(305) 375-4573 

spalmer@miamidade.gov 
 

Appendix B

B-4

mailto:spalmer@miamidade.gov�


Meeting of Thursday, April 28, 2011 at 3:00 p.m. 
  

HOSPITAL GOVERNANCE TASKFORCE (HGT) 
State Attorney’s Office 
1350 NW 12th Avenue 

4th Floor Conference Room 
Miami, Florida 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

  
 
 
 

I. ROLL CALL 
 
 

II. OPENING  REMARKS - Chairperson Juan C. Zapata 
 
 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Meeting of April 14, 2011 
 

 
IV. TELECONFERENCE PRESENTATION (30 min.) 

Dr. John R. Combes, President and COO 
Center for Healthcare Governance, Chicago, IL 

 
 

V. INTRODUCTION AND DISCUSSIONS (30 min.) 
Mr. Carlos Migoya, President Elect, Jackson Memorial Hospital  
 
 

VI. WORKING  ITEM (remainder of meeting) 
 

Discuss/Draft Preliminary Recommendations  
 
 

VII.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 

HGT 
Miami-Dade County  
Hospital Governance 

Taskforce 
 
 
 

Chairperson 
Juan C. Zapata 

 
 

Vice Chairperson 
Susan Dechovitz 

 
 

Members 
Manuel P. Anton, III 

Martha Baker 
Michael Barron 

Jose Cancela 
Lee Chaykin 

Ed Feller 
Robert Johnson 
Brian E. Keeley 

M. Narendra Kini 
Marisel Losa 

Steven Marcus 
Ana Mederos 
Linda Quick 

Steven Pinkert 
Sharon Pontious 
Lillian Rivera 
Donna Shalala 

Steven Sonenreich 
 
 
 

Website:  
http://www.miamidade.gov/audit
or/hospital_governance.asp 
 
 
 

Staff Contact: 
S. Donna Palmer, Coordinator 

Office of the Commission Auditor 
(305) 375-4573 

spalmer@miamidade.gov 
 

Appendix B

B-5

mailto:spalmer@miamidade.gov�


Meeting of Thursday, May 5, 2011 at 3:00 p.m. 
  

HOSPITAL GOVERNANCE TASKFORCE (HGT) 
Miami-Dade County Health Department 

Center of Excellence 
8600 NW 17th Street 

Miami, FL  33126 
 
 

 
AGENDA 

  
 
 
 
 
 

I. ROLL CALL 
 
 

II. OPENING  REMARKS - Chairperson Juan C. Zapata 
 
 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Meeting of April 21, 2011 
 

 
IV. WORKING  ITEM  

 
Discuss/Draft Preliminary Recommendations  

 
 

V.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 

HGT 
Miami-Dade County  
Hospital Governance 

Taskforce 
 
 
 

Chairperson 
Juan C. Zapata 

 
 

Vice Chairperson 
Susan Dechovitz 

 
 

Members 
Manuel P. Anton, III 

Martha Baker 
Michael Barron 

Jose Cancela 
Lee Chaykin 

Ed Feller 
Robert Johnson 
Brian E. Keeley 

M. Narendra Kini 
Marisel Losa 

Steven Marcus 
Ana Mederos 
Linda Quick 

Steven Pinkert 
Sharon Pontious 
Lillian Rivera 
Donna Shalala 

Steven Sonenreich 
 
 
 

Website:  
http://www.miamidade.gov/audit
or/hospital_governance.asp 
 
 
 

Staff Contact: 
S. Donna Palmer, Coordinator 

Office of the Commission Auditor 
(305) 375-4573 

spalmer@miamidade.gov 
 

Appendix B

B-6

mailto:spalmer@miamidade.gov�


Meeting of Thursday, May 12, 2011 at 3:00 p.m. 
  

HOSPITAL GOVERNANCE TASKFORCE (HGT) 
Miami-Dade County Health Department 

Center of Excellence 
8600 NW 17th Street 

Miami, FL  33126 
 
 

 
AGENDA 

  
 
 
 
 
 

I. ROLL CALL 
 
 

II. OPENING  REMARKS - Chairperson Juan C. Zapata 
 
 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Meeting of April 28, 2011 
 

 
IV. WORKING  ITEM  

 
Edit/Approve Final Report  

 
 

V. OTHER MATTERS 
 
 

VI. CLOSING REMARKS -  Chairperson  Juan C. Zapata 
 

 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

 

HGT 
Miami-Dade County  
Hospital Governance 

Taskforce 
 
 
 

Chairperson 
Juan C. Zapata 

 
 

Vice Chairperson 
Susan Dechovitz 

 
 

Members 
Manuel P. Anton, III 

Martha Baker 
Michael Barron 

Jose Cancela 
Lee Chaykin 

Edward J. Feller 
Robert Johnson 
Brian E. Keeley 

M. Narendra Kini 
Marisel Losa 

Steven Marcus 
Ana Mederos 
Linda Quick 

Steven Pinkert 
Sharon Pontious 
Lillian Rivera 
Donna Shalala 

Steven Sonenreich 
 
 
 

Website:  
http://www.miamidade.gov/audit
or/hospital_governance.asp 
 
 
 

Staff Contact: 
S. Donna Palmer, Coordinator 

Office of the Commission Auditor 
(305) 375-4573 

spalmer@miamidade.gov 
 

Appendix B

B-7

mailto:spalmer@miamidade.gov�


This page intentionally blank 

Appendix B

B-8



Appendix C

C-1



Appendix C

C-2



Appendix C

C-3



Appendix C

C-4



Appendix C

C-5



Appendix C

C-6



Appendix C

C-7



Appendix C

C-8



Appendix C

C-9



Appendix C

C-10



Appendix C

C-11



Appendix C

C-12



Appendix C

C-13



Appendix C

C-14



Appendix C

C-15



Appendix C

C-16



Appendix C

C-17



Appendix C

C-18



Appendix C

C-19



Appendix C

C-20



Appendix C

C-21



Appendix C

C-22



Appendix C

C-23



Appendix C

C-24



Appendix C

C-25



Appendix C

C-26



Appendix C

C-27



Appendix C

C-28



Appendix C

C-29



Appendix C

C-30



Appendix C

C-31



Appendix C

C-32



Appendix C

C-33



Appendix C

C-34



Appendix C

C-35



Appendix C

C-36



Appendix C

C-37



Appendix C

C-38



Appendix C

C-39



Appendix C

C-40



Appendix C

C-41



Appendix C

C-42



Appendix C

C-43



Appendix C

C-44



Appendix C

C-45



Appendix C

C-46



Appendix C

C-47



Appendix C

C-48



Appendix C

C-49



Appendix C

C-50



LIST OF TRUST DECISIONS SUBJECT TO THE COMMISSION’S APPROVAL (PRIOR OR SUBSEQUENT) OR   
   THE COMMISSION’S OVERRIDE 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

1.   BYLAWS--The Board of Trustees is empowered to make, adopt and amend the Bylaws of the Trust, but the 
Bylaws and amendments are not effective until approved by the Commission.  Sec. 25A-3(f). 

2.  COUNTY ORDINANCES—Broadly speaking, the Trust cannot take any action that is inconsistent with Ordinances 
of the County.  Sec. 25A-3(f). 

3.  CONTRACTS GENERALLY—The Trust cannot enter into or amend a contract that requires the expenditure of 
funds in excess of amounts appropriated in the contractual services category of the County budget, without the 
prior approval of the Commission.  Sec. 25A-4(c)(1). 

4.  UNIVERSITY OF MIAMI BASIC AFFILIATION AGREEMENT--The Trust cannot change the contractual relationship 
with the U.M., without the prior approval of the Commission.  Sec. 25A-4(c)(2). 

5.  HEALTHCARE DELIVERY POLICIES--The Trust cannot substantially change the healthcare delivery policies set by 
the Commission.  Sec. 25A-4(c)(3). 

6.  COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENTS—The Trust negotiates the Collective Bargaining Agreements with 
Unions, but the agreements cannot take effect until approved by Commission.  Sec. 25A-4(c)(4). 

7.  REAL ESTATE—The Trust cannot acquire real property, without the prior approval of the Commission and the 
title to such real property must be taken in the name of the County.  In addition, the Commission can declassify 
real property that had been made designated facilities of the Trust and, subject to the prior approval of the 
Commission, the Trust can accept gifts of real estate.  Secs. 25A-4(d), 25A-2, and 25A-4(h). 

8.  REAL ESTATE--Trust cannot sell, convey, mortgage, or encumber title to real estate.  Sec. 25A-4(d). 

9.  DEMOLITION OF FACILITIES—The Trust cannot destroy, replace or abandon real estate, without the prior 
approval of the Commission.  Sec. 25A-4(d). 

10.  NAMING  COUNTY BUILDINGS—The Trust cannot name buildings without Commission approval.  BCC Rule 
9.02. 

11.  PERSONNEL POLICIES--The Trust personnel policies are effective, unless overridden by the Commission.  Sec. 
25A-4(e).  

12.  DIRECTIVES--The Commission can require the Trust by resolution to take or not take certain action.  Sec. 25A-
4(j). 

13.  BUDGET, BORROWING AND BONDS—The Commission must approve the Trust’s budget prior to 
implementation and the Trust’s borrowing of money.  Also, the Trust cannot issue bonds but can request the 
Commission to do so.  Sec. 25A-5. 

14.  ENABLING STATUTE—The Commission has the power under Chapter 154, Part II, to amend Chapter 25A to 
limit the enumerated powers or to totally revoke the statutory trust enabled by Chapter 154, Part II.  Sec. 154.11, 
Fla. Stat.   

Appendix D

D-1



This page intentionally blank 

Appendix D

D-2



Appendix E

E-1



Appendix E

E-2



Appendix F

F-1



Appendix F

F-2



Appendix F

F-3



This page intentionally blank 

Appendix F

F-4



Appendix G

G-1



Appendix G

G-2



Appendix G

G-3



Appendix G

G-4



Appendix G

G-5



Appendix G

G-6



Appendix G

G-7



Appendix G

G-8



Appendix G

G-9



Appendix G

G-10



Appendix G

G-11



Appendix G

G-12



Appendix H

H-1



Appendix H

H-2



Appendix H

H-3



This page intentionally blank 

Appendix H

H-4



Background Information 
Boston Medical Center (BMC), Boston, MA 

 
Legal Structure, Governance, and Mission 
Ownership: Private nonprofit 
Governance change: 
− In July 1966, two Boston public hospitals (one acute; one long-term care that was closed in 90 days 

by the agreement) and a private, non- profit hospital (Boston University Medical Center Hospital 
that was on the campus of but not owned by Boston University) consolidated to form the new, non-
profit Boston Medical Center; change required state legislative changes. 

− Boston Public Health Commission, a seven-member board, created by the same legislation to 
provide for public health responsibilities. 

Governance: BMC Board of Trustees  
Operation: Private nonprofit 
Mission: 
− Academic medical center and the primary teaching affiliate for Boston University School of 

Medicine 
− Largest safety net hospital in New England and reaches into the community as a founding partner 

of Boston HealthNet, a network of 15 community health centers through Boston serving more than 
a quarter million people annually.( In 1997 provided $146 million in free care to vulnerable 
population)  

− Largest 24-hour Level I trauma center in New England 
− Boston Medical Center is a recognized leader in groundbreaking medical research. Boston Medical 

Center 
− More than $126 million in sponsored research funding in 2010, and oversees 581 research and 

service projects separate from research activities at Boston University School of Medicine 
− Mission to provide exceptional care, without exception 
Beds:  639 (per 2009 Annual Report & BMC website) 
Employees:  5,121 (per 2011 AHA Guide) 
Clinics:   Founding partner of 15 Community Health Centers 
 
Sunshine and Sovereign Immunity 
Sunshine:  No  Sovereign Immunity:  No 
 
Hospital or Health System: Hospital 
− Founding partner of Boston HealthNet, a network of 15 community health centers through Boston 

serving more than a quarter million people annually. 
 
Board and Autonomy:  30 Trustees 
− 10 appointed by the mayor of Boston 
− 10 were appointed by the board of the nonprofit hospital in the merger 
− 6 ex officio members 
− 4 senior officials or physicians appointed by neighborhood health centers in Boston HealthNet 
 
Financial Relationship with County/City:  Limited; debt service on City of Boston owned property 
 
Budget Approval 
− Operating:  Trustees. Capital:  ? 

 

Appendix I

I-1



Background Information 
Boston Medical Center (BMC), Boston, MA 

 
Assets 
− Some BMC/some City of Boston 
− Includes physical plant 90 year lease from City of Boston (Boston Public Health Service 

Commission) 
 
Teaching Hospital:  Yes; primary academic teaching hospital for Boston University School of 
Medicine 
 
Independence:  ? 
 
Medical Staff 
− Staffing:  1,300 Physicians 
− Physicians’ compensation for indigent care:  ? 
− Physicians’ compensation for teaching:  ? 
 
Unions 
− 10 bargaining units, 4 unions 
− Labor contracts are not civil service 

 
Unfunded Care 
− How funded, percent funded, & limits:  ? 
− Contract with local government to fund indigent care:  ? 
− Federal and/or state funding:  For indigent care via various mechanisms 
 
Payor Mix 
− 50% Low-income – Medicaid/Health Safety Net Pool (compensated uninsured) 
− 30% Medicare 
− 20% Commercial, self-pay & others 

 
Revenues 
BMC fiscal year ending September 30, 2009 (per BMC 2009 Annual Report) 
− Medicare  ? 
− Medicaid   ? 
− Charity Care  ? 
− Net Patient Revenue $874 million 
− Grants & Contract Revenue $82 million 
− Other Revenue $37 million 
− Total Operating Revenue $993 million 
 
Expenses 
BMC fiscal year ending September 30, 2009 (per BMC 2009 Annual Report) 
− Salaries, Wages and Benefits $440 million 
− Total Operating Expenses $1,017 million 
 
Loss from Operations (per BMC 2009 Annual Report):  $25 million 

Appendix I

I-2



Background Information 
Cook County Health and Hospitals System (CCHHS), Chicago, IL 

 

 
 

Legal Structure, Governing, and Mission 
Ownership: Government (Cook County, IL) 
Governance: 11-member Cook County Health & Hospitals System (CCHHS) Board of 

Directors 
Governance Change: ? 
Operation: Government (CCHHS Board of Directors) 
Mission Provide a comprehensive program of quality health care with respect and 

dignity, to the residents of Cook County, regardless of their ability to pay. 
Beds: 895 
Employees: 6,319 full time employees 
 
Sunshine and Sovereign Immunity 
− Sunshine: Yes Sovereign Immunity: No (see note below) 
Note:  CCHHS is included in Cook County self-insurance program.  Individuals/patients could 
sue the health system for malpractice.  However, the County Code requires the County to defend 
and indemnify patient care personnel, public health practitioners (including physicians), the 
Nominating Committee and the CCHHS Board of Directors, with specified exceptions.  
 
Hospital or Health System:  Health System 
− John H. Stroger, Jr. Hospital (Flagship Institution).  Includes 464 beds, 400 residents and 

fellows, 300 attending physicians; anchored by 228 medical/surgical beds, with dedicated 
units for obstetrics, pediatrics intensive care, neonatal intensive care, and burns; 40% of the 
hospital’s space is used for outpatient care, specialty diagnosis and treatment. 

− Provident Hospital 
− Oak Forest Hospital 
− 16 Ambulatory and Community Health Network Clinics 
− Cook County Department of Public Health 
− Cermak Health Services (correctional health care) 
− Rothstein CORE Center 

Note:  Each of the systems is lead by a Chief Operating Officer (COO).  
 
Board and Autonomy 
− 11-member CCHHS Board of Directors with appointed Directors limited to no more than 

two consecutive five-year terms 
− Accountable to: Cook County Board of County Commissioners 
− Nomination & selection:  Cook County Board of Commissioners created a Nominating 

Committee of distinguished professionals, which selected 20 individuals from which the 
Chairman of the Board selected 11 for final consideration by the Board of County 
Commissioners. One of the 11 Directors shall be the Chairperson of the Health and Hospitals 
Committee of the County Board and shall serve as an ex officio member with voting rights. 

− County Commissioners approve annual operating & capital budget, real estate transactions 
above a certain limit ($100K), and other transactions above $1 million.  

− The CCHHS Board of Directors has authority to set salaries and compensation for executives 
and physicians. 

 

Appendix I

I-3



Background Information 
Cook County Health and Hospitals System (CCHHS), Chicago, IL 

 

 
 

Financial Relationship with County/City 
− 2009 CAFR shows CCHHS revenues  a proprietary fund of Cook County 
− Taxing Authority: No, CCHHS does not have authority to increase taxes, request for tax 

increases to support the health system are submitted to Cook County Board of 
Commissioners. 

− Percentage of Operating Funds from State/Local Government:  ? 
− Percentage of Operating Revenue received from City/County (Taxes): 39.6% ($452.9 

million) 
 

Budget Approval:  
− Operating Budget: Cook County Board of Commissioners 
− Capital Budget:  Cook County Board of Commissioners 
 
Assets Ownership:  Cook County owns the facilities/assets 
 
Teaching Hospital 
− John H. Stroger, Jr. Hospital (Flagship Institution):  Yes; has an academic affiliation with 

Rush Medical College for both undergraduate and graduate medical education, 
RFUMS(Rosalind Franklin University of Medicine and Science) / The Chicago Medical 
School, and the Chicago College of Osteopathic Medicine for medical rotations. 

− Provident Hospital: No 
− Oak Forest Hospital:  No 
 
Independence 
− Labor Contracts (Authority to approve): Board of Commissioners (Cook County)  
− Executive Compensation (Authority to approve): Health System Governing Board 
 
Medical Staff/General Staff 
− General Staff/Full Time: 6,319 employees 
− Part Time: 676 employees 
 
Unions: 
− Hospitals and Health Care Employee Union 
− SEIU 73  
− Doctors Council 
− NNOC – (National Nursing Organization Council) 
Note:  These unions include more than 60% of the health system workers 
 
Unfunded Care:  
− How funded, percentage funded, & limits:  ? 
− Contract with local government to fund indigent care:  ? 
− Federal and/or state funding:  ? 
− Value of Uncompensated Care: $321.3 million (FY ended November 30, 2009) 
− Subsidies from Cook County:  $217 million (based on budget plans for 2011) 
 

Appendix I

I-4



Background Information 
Cook County Health and Hospitals System (CCHHS), Chicago, IL 

 

 
 

Payor Mix (FY 2009) 
− Medicare:  9 % 
− Medicaid: 32% 
− Other: 7% 
− Self-Pay: 52% 
 
Revenues 
− Medicare: $56.6 million (9%) 
− Medicaid: $201.4 million (32%) 
− Other: $44 million (7%) 
− Self Pay: $327.3 million (52%) 

 
Total Operating Revenues – $629,542,075 ($599.5 million from net patient revenue) 
 
Non Operating Revenues (from tax sources) - $452,968,729 
− Sources of Non-Operating Revenue:   

Property Taxes $138,561,251 
Sales Taxes  $285,027,113 
Cigarette Taxes $29,380,365 

− Percentage of revenues from City/County:  39 % 
Note:  Sales tax support scheduled to be rolled back to 1.25% on July 1, 2011 

Appendix I

I-5



Background Information 
Los Angeles County (LAC) Department of Health Services (DHS) 

 
 
Legal Structure, Governance, and Mission 
 
Ownership:  Los Angeles County, CA 
  
Governance:  Government, Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors 
 
Governance Change:  None, but LA County has a conducted or been the subject of a substantial 
number of studies of health system governance.  For example, a 2004-2005 Los Angeles County Civil 
Grand Jury report provided in-depth analysis on creating a hospital authority to replace DHS. 
 
DHS Executive Team: 
− Mitchell H. Katz, M.D., Director 
− John F. Schunhoff, Ph.D., Chief Deputy Director 
− Vivian C. Branchick, RN, MS, Chief Nursing Officer & Director of Nursing Affairs 
− Cheri Todoroff, MPH, Deputy Director, Planning & Program Oversight  
− Nina Park, M.D, Interim Chief Medical Officer, Division of Ambulatory/Managed Care 
− Kevin Lynch, MS, Chief Information Officer 
− Gregory Polk, MPA, Administrative Deputy 

Mission: 
− Ensure access to high-quality, patient-centered, cost-effective health care to Los Angeles County 

residents through direct services at DHS facilities and through collaboration with community and 
university partners.  DHS has an annual budget of $4 billion and about 20,000 employees. 

− The Los Angeles County Department of Health Services (DHS) is the second largest public health 
system in the nation.  DHS serves the healthcare needs of nearly 10 million residents.  DHS 
provides acute and rehabilitative patient care, trains physicians and other health care clinicians, and 
conducts patient care-related research. 

− DHS also operates the Los Angeles County's Emergency Medical Services Agency and is 
responsible for planning, monitoring, and evaluating the local EMS system. L.A. County's EMS 
agency is the largest multi-jurisdictional EMS system in the country with more than 18,000 
certified EMS personnel employed by fire departments, law enforcement, ambulance companies, 
hospitals, and private organizations to provide lifesaving services 24/7. 

 
Beds:  In FY 2010-11, DHS has a total of 1,469 budgeted beds. 
 
Employees:  In FY 2010-11, DHS has 20,248 in budgeted positions in areas such as research, clinical 
care, human resources, information technology, finance, and more.  As of February 2011, the number 
of Full-Time Equivalents (FTEs) in DHS is 17,423. 
 
Sunshine and Sovereign Immunity:  Dr. Schunhoff to address 
 
Hospital or Health System: Health System 
− Four hospitals:  LAC+USC Healthcare Network,  Harbor-UCLA Medical Center,  VallyCare Olive 

View-UCLA Medical Center, and Rancho Los Amigos National Rehabilitation Center. 
− Two multi-service ambulatory care centers - High Desert Health System and Martin Luther King, Jr. 
− Six comprehensive health centers, multiple health centers throughout the Los Angeles County, 

many in partnership with private, community-based providers, and numerous health clinics.

Appendix I

I-6



Background Information 
Los Angeles County (LAC) Department of Health Services (DHS) 

 
Board, Selection, and Autonomy:  Dr. Schunhoff to address 
 
Financial Relationship with County/City:   
− DHS is 100% owned/operated by the County of Los Angeles 
− Over $640 million was budgeted as General Fund operating subsidies for the Hospital Enterprise 

Funds in the adopted FY 2010-11 County budget. 
 

Budget Approval: Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors 
 
Assets:  County owns facilities. 
 
Teaching Hospital:  Yes. 
− University of Southern California School of Medicine 
− UCLA School of Medicine 
− Charles R. Drew University of Medicine and Science 

 
Independence:  Dr. Schunhoff to address 
− Labor Contracts and Compensation:  ? 
− Contracting Authority for Goods and Services:  ? 
 
Medical Staff:  Dr. Schunhoff to address 
− Staffing:  ? 
− Physicians’ compensation for indigent care:  ? 
− Physicians’ compensation for teaching:   ? 
 
Unions:  Dr. Schunhoff to address 
 
Unfunded Care:  DHS serves as the major provider of healthcare for the more than two million 
county residents without health insurance and provides the majority of all uncompensated medical care 
in the county. 
 

Federal * 38.9% 
State ** 22.2% 
County *** 38.9% 
     Total 100.0% 

 
Payor Mix 
 

 
 
Patient Mix 

 
Hospitals - 
Inpatient 

 
Hospitals - 
Outpatient 

Multi-service 
Ambulatory 
Care Centers 

Comprehensive 
& Community 
Health Centers 

Medi-Cal 43.1% 23.9% 20.5% 10.9% 
Uninsured 41.4% 49.0% 62.6% 73.7% 
Medicare 8.2% 8.8% 6.0% 2.9% 
Other Third Party 6.3% 10.5% 7.2% 3.9% 
Other Payor 1.0% 7.8% 3.7% 8.6% 
Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

Appendix I

I-7



Background Information 
Los Angeles County (LAC) Department of Health Services (DHS) 

 
 
Revenues 
 
FY 2011 Budget: 
− The adopted FY 2010-11 budget included $640 million as an “Operating Subsidy – General Fund” 

for the Hospital Enterprise Funds. 
− At the time the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors adopted the Department of Health 

Services' (DHS) FY 2010-11 Final Budget on September 28, 2010, the budget included an 
unsolved deficit of $253.3 million. 

− Based on the latest DHS Fiscal Outlook update presented to the Board of Supervisors on March 29, 
2011, the current FY 2010-11 estimated shortfall is now $68.8 million. 

− The majority of the funding solutions come from various elements of the new Waiver. 
− DHS continues to work with the County Chief Executive Office to resolve the remaining deficit for 

FY 2010-11. 
 
LA County Reports on Health System Governance 
− LA County has conducted or been the subject of a substantial number of studies of health system 

governance.  For example, a 2004-2005 Los Angeles County Civil Grand Jury report provided in-
depth analysis of creating a hospital authority. 

− The below list of reports was extracted from the DHS Office of Planning and Analysis webpage.  It 
is available online by following the “DHS Governance Reports” link on the webpage, 
http://www.ladhs.org/wps/portal/Planning. 

 
  

Office of Planning and Analysis - DHS Governance Reports    

• Los Angeles County Civil Grand Jury 2004-2005 Final Report: Health Authority Subcommittee 
findings pp. 43-165  

• LAC Chief Administrative Office Health Authority Blue Print: Additional Information -- 6/28/05  
• LAC Chief Administrative Office Health Authority Blue Print: Preliminary Report -- 4/18/05  
• Hospital Association of Southern California: Health Care Authority Brief -- 6/6/03  
• USC: Analysis of Alternate Governance for LAC Department of Health Services -- May 2003  
• LAC Ad Hoc Hearing Body on Governance: Final Report -- 2/5/02  
• LAC Chief Administrative Office: Action Plan for Conversion to Alternative Governance Models -- 

2/1/02  
• LAC Chief Administrative Office: Governance of the Department of Health Service -- 8/29/01  
• LAC Health Crisis Manager: Governance of the Department of Health Services -- 12/12/95  

Other Public Health Governance Reports  

• Hennepin County Medical Center Governance Transition Committee Reports  
• National Association of Public Hospital Safety Net Hospitals: Governance - Issue Brief -- Sept. 

2003  
• American College of Healthcare Executives: Governance Change for Public Hospitals--1999  

 

    

 

Appendix I

I-8



Grady Memorial Health System (GMHS), Atlanta, GA 

Legal Structure, Governance, and Mission 
Ownership: Fulton-DeKalb Hospital Authority 
− The Fulton-DeKalb Hospital Authority (FDHA) was created to oversee the operations of Grady 

Health System. 
− Consists of 10 members. The Fulton County Board of Commissioners appoints seven members and 

the DeKalb County Board of Commissioners appoints three members.1 
− Term: Staggered terms of four years 
Governance: Private nonprofit corporation (Grady Memorial Hospital Corporation) 
Operation:  Grady Memorial Hospital Corporation Board of Directors 
− In January 2008, a coalition of state and community leaders agreed to create the Grady Memorial 

Hospital Corporation, a nonprofit corporation charged with administering the hospital; members of 
a new seventeen-member board were announced in March 2008. 

− In response to the board's fund-raising campaign to raise $100 million for the hospital, the Robert 
W. Woodruff Foundation pledged $200 million over four years, and the medical insurance 
company Kaiser Permanente pledged $5 million. 

Governance change: 
− Originally owned by the two Georgia counties: Fulton and DeKalb. 
− In January 2008, a coalition of state and community leaders agreed to create the Grady Memorial 

Hospital Corporation, a nonprofit corporation charged with administering the hospital, and in 
March members of a new seventeen-member board were announced. 

− In response to the board's fund-raising campaign to raise $100 million for the hospital, the Robert 
W. Woodruff Foundation pledged $200 million over four years, and the medical insurance 
company Kaiser Permanente pledged $5 million. 

− Grady Memorial Hospital Corporation (GMHC) is a nonprofit corporation established to oversee 
the operations of Grady Health System under a 40 year lease. 

Mission: 
− Grady improves the health of the community by providing quality, comprehensive healthcare in a 

compassionate, culturally competent, ethical and fiscally responsible manner. 
− Grady maintains its commitment to the underserved of Fulton and DeKalb counties, while also 

providing care for residents of metro Atlanta and Georgia. Grady leads through its clinical 
excellence, innovative research and progressive medical education and training. 

− Excellence — Grady Health System strives for the highest quality in all that we do. The art and 
science of health require a commitment to lifelong learning and professionalism. 

− Customer Service — Grady Health System is motivated by a sincere concern for the well-being of 
all people and we will strive to serve everyone with dignity, respect and compassion. 

− Ethics — Grady Health System will maintain the highest ethical standards through its actions and 
decision. 

− Teamwork — Grady Health System cultivates an environment of communication, respect, trust and 
collaboration. 

− Commitment — Grady Health System is motivated by pride and dedication, determined to achieve 
goals of the organization and willing to give our best efforts at all times. 

 
Beds: 953 
Employees: 4,850 (excluding Physicians) 
Physicians: 1,100 (including residents) 
Neighborhood Health Centers: 8 
                                                            
1 Source: Fulton‐Dekalb Hospital Authority website, http://www.gradyhealth.org/fdha.html 

Appendix I

I-9



Grady Memorial Health System (GMHS), Atlanta, GA 

 
Sunshine and Sovereign Immunity 
Sunshine: Yes Sovereign Immunity: No 
 
Hospital or Health System: Healthcare system 
− Grady Health System is one of the largest public health systems in the United States. Grady 

consists of the 953-bed Grady Memorial Hospital, eight neighborhood health centers, Crestview 
Health & Rehabilitation Center - and Children's Healthcare of Atlanta at Hughes Spalding, which 
is operated as a Children's affiliate. 

 
Board  Selection and Autonomy 
− Consists of 17 members.  
− Staggered terms of one to three years. 
− Selection from a pool of candidates from nomination committee and serving Board Members. 

 
Financial Relationship with County/City 
GMHS is on 40-year leasehold interest from Fulton-DeKalb Hospital Authority. 
− GMHS is a Private Nonprofit. 
− Percentage of operating funds from County:  
− FY 2009  FY 2010 
− $56.8. Million  $52.9 million 
−  
Budget Approval 
− Independent of the County. 

 
Assets:    
− Owned by the county.  Sales or subleasing requires approval from County. 
− GMHS capital assets are on 40-year leasehold from Fulton County 

 
Teaching Hospital:  Yes 
− Grady is an internationally recognized teaching hospital staffed exclusively by doctors from Emory 

University and Morehouse schools of medicine. 
 

Independence: 
−  No labor unions. 
− Contracting Authority for Goods and Services:  GMHS Board of Directors 

 
Medical Staff 
− Physicians are staff of Emory University and Morehouse schools of medicine. 
− Nurses are GMHS employees. 
− Physicians’ compensation for indigent care.(Handled  by the Group Billings) 
− GMHS has yearly contractual amount it pays to the medical schools that enables the physicians to 

provides services to GMHS Patients whether insure or not. 
− Physicians’ compensation for teaching is handled by the medical schools 
− GMHS contracts with the medical schools that covers yearly pay(an agreed contractual amount) 

 
Unions:  No 

Appendix I

I-10



Grady Memorial Health System (GMHS), Atlanta, GA 

 
Unfunded Care 
− How funded, percent funded, & limits: 
− Contract with local government to fund indigent care:  The two counties, Fulton and DeKalb, 

provide some funding; in 2010:  Fulton $68 million & DeKalb $18 million. 
− Federal- Disproportionate share hospital funds DSH Fund 
− State funding:  No. 
 
Payor Mix FY 2009 FY 2010 
− Medicare 16.6% 17.2% 
− Medicaid 33.0% 32.4% 
− Insurance 16.8% ? 
− Uninsured 33.6% 34.4% 

 
Revenues FY 2009 FY 2010 
− Net Non Operating revenue $17.8 million 10.9 million 
− Net Patient service Revenue-  $270.2 million $293.6 million 
−    Total Operating Revenues - $387.6 million $420.5 million 
−    Indigent Care Trust Fund Rev. $54.2 million $60.1 million 
−    Grant & Other revenue- $63.2 million $68.8 million 
−    County Support $56.8 million $52.9 million 

 
Expenses FY 2009 FY 2010 
− Salary and Wages $297.4 million ? 
− Contractual Payments $3.4 million $4.1 million 
− Total Operating Expenses $473.8 million $478.4 million 
 
Loss from Operations FY 2009 
− Loss  $11.5 million 

Appendix I

I-11



Background Information 
Harborview Medical Center (HMC), Seattle, WA 

 

 

Legal Structure, Governance, and Mission 
Ownership: King County, WA 
Governance: Harborview Board of Trustees; HMC is a separate legal entity having its own 

corporate powers1 
Operation: University of Washington (contracted) 
Mission: 
− One of two academic medical centers in UW Medicine health-care system 
− The only Level I adult and pediatric trauma and burn center serving Washington, Alaska, Montana 

and Idaho 
− Offers highly specialized services, such as trauma and burn care, as well as neurosurgery, eye care, 

vascular, rehabilitation, sleep medicine and spine care 
− Primary mission is to provide and teach exemplary patient care and demonstrate an unwavering 

commitment to those patients and programs for the priority population groups identified by King 
County (including: incarcerated persons, mentally ill, STDs, trauma, and others).  It also is the 
Disaster Control Hospital for Seattle and King County. 

Beds:  413 
Employees:  4,432 (UW employees) 
Clinics: 
− Center of Neurosciences  
− Center of Trauma  
− Center of Burn care  
− Center of Reconstruction and rehabilitation  
− Orthopaedics  
− Global health  
− Sleep medicine  
− Sports and spine care  
− Vision and eye care  
− Vascular surgery  
− Center of Mental health, substance abuse and chronic medical disease  
− Center of AIDS/sexually transmitted diseases  
 
Sunshine and Sovereign Immunity 
Sunshine:  Yes Sovereign Immunity:  Not for staff (which are UW) 
 
Hospital or Health System: Hospital 
− Part of UW Medicine health-care system, which also includes UW Medical Center, the UW School 

of Medicine, UW Neighborhood Clinics, Northwest Hospital & Medical Center and Airlift 
Northwest, an emergency air transport service that serves the region. 

 
Board and Autonomy 
− 13 Trustees appointed by elected County Executive and confirmed by Council 
− 4-year terms (maximum of 3 terms) 
− “Trustees determine major institutional policies and retain control of programs and fiscal 

matters...accountable to the public and King County for all financial aspects of HMC’s operations 
                                                            
1 Note 1 to King County, Washington, Financial Statements, December 31, 2009 

Appendix I

I-12



Background Information 
Harborview Medical Center (HMC), Seattle, WA 

 

 

and agree to maintain a fiscal policy that keeps the operating program and expenditures of HMC 
within the limits of operating income.” 1 

− “County cannot impose its will on HMC.” 1 
 
Financial Relationship with County/City 
− HMC pays annual rent to King County for facilities 
− 2009 CAFR shows HMC revenues to King County of $6.1 million 
− Per King County Prosecuting Attorney’s Office, HMC does have taxing authority but was not 

being exercised; King County does not pay for indigent care 
− Percentage of operating funds from County: ? 
 
Budget Approval 
− Operating:  Trustees. Capital:  County approval for bonds 

 
Assets:  County owns facilities. 
 
Teaching Hospital:  Yes; one of two academic medical centers in UW Medicine health-care system. 
UW manages HMC under contract. 
 
Independence: 
− Labor Contracts and Compensation:  Staff are UW employees. 
− Contracting Authority for Goods and Services:  HMC Board of Trustees 
− See “Boards and Autonomy” section on previous page. 
 
Medical Staff 
− Staff:  Are UW employees 
− Physicians’ compensation for indigent care:  ? 
− Physicians’ compensation for teaching:  ? 
 
Unions 
− Hospitals and Health Care Employee Union 
− SEIU 1199 Northwest 

 
Unfunded Care 
− How funded, percent funded, & limits:   
− Contract with local government to fund indigent care:  
− Federal and/or state funding:   
 
Payor Mix ($ in millions) 
Categories Amounts Percentage 
Inpatient Revenue $1,015 70.8% 
Outpatient Revenue $418 29.2% 
    Medicare     $236     16.5% 
    Medicaid     $209     14.6% 
    Charity Care      $155     10.8% 
    Other     $203     14.2% 

Appendix I

I-13



Background Information 
Harborview Medical Center (HMC), Seattle, WA 

 

 

Total Patient Services Revenue     $1,433 100% 
 
Revenues 
HMC fiscal year ending June 30, 2010 
− Medicare – $236 million 
− Medicaid – $209 million 
− Charity Care – $155 million 
− Inpatient Revenue – $1.015 million 
− Outpatient Revenue – $418 million 
− Total Patient Services Revenue – $1.432 million 
− Total Operating Revenue – $767 million 
 
FY 2011 King County Budget 
− HMC - Sexual Assault Survivor Services: $127,627 
− HMC - Building Repair & Remodel: $10,221,299 (Capital) 
− Jail Health Services: $24,722,964 (GF; not listed as revenue to HMC) 
− Jail Health Services (Mental Health & Drug Dependency):  $3,250,372 

Appendix I

I-14



Background Information 
Health Care District of Palm Beach County (HCDPB), West Palm Beach, FL 

 

 

Legal Structure, Governance, and Mission 
Ownership: Health care district 
Governance change: The Palm Beach County Health Care District (HCDPB) was created by Chapter 

87-450, Laws of Florida, as amended, and approved by voter referendum in 
1988 as a county-wide health care district to provide comprehensive planning, 
funding, and coordination of health care delivery for indigent and medically 
needy residents of Palm Beach County.  The referendum provided authority for 
ad valorem millage rate of up to 3 mils; in 2010, the millage rate was 1.1451. 

Governance: Health Care District Board of Commissioners 
Operation: Health care district 
Mission: Ensure access to a comprehensive health care system and the delivery of quality 

services for the residents of Palm Beach County. 
− Saving lives in the “Golden Hour” through the integrated Trauma System  
− Covering the uninsured with programs such as Vita Health and Maternity 

Care  
− Keeping children healthy by staffing registered nurses in the public schools  
− Offering skilled nursing care at the Edward J. Healey Rehabilitation and 

Nursing Center  
− Providing acute care in underserved areas through Lakeside Medical Center 

on the southern shores of Lake Okeechobee 
Beds:  70 
Employees:  1,000 total 
Clinics:   None directly operated by HCDPB 
 
Sunshine and Sovereign Immunity 
Sunshine:  Yes Sovereign Immunity:  Yes, but only at District owned facilities 
 
Hospital or Health System: Health System 
− Integrated Trauma System 

o Two Level II trauma centers (Tenet owned and operated, St. Mary's Medical Center & Delray 
Medical Center).  These are paid to maintain staff and service levels required to maintain 
“trauma” designation, and then also reimbursed for “eligible” trauma patients.   

o Air ambulances 
− Uninsured with programs, such as Vita Health and Maternity Care  These operate like health plans, 

reimbursing hospitals and doctors for services rendered to “eligible” patients. 
− Registered nurses in public schools 
− Skilled nursing care at the Edward J. Healey Rehabilitation and Nursing Center 
− Acute care in underserved areas through Lakeside Medical Center on the southern shores of Lake 

Okeechobee 
 

Board and Autonomy:  HCDPB Board of Commissioners (7) 
− 3 members of the Board are appointed by the County’s Board of County Commissioners 
− 3 members of the Board are appointed by the Governor of the State of Florida 
− 1 member is the Director of the State’s Department of Health for Palm Beach County 
− Maximum of two consecutive 4-year terms 
  

Appendix I

I-15



Background Information 
Health Care District of Palm Beach County (HCDPB), West Palm Beach, FL 

 

 

Financial Relationship with County/City:  Independent taxing district. 
 
Budget Approval 
− Operating:  HCDPB Board of Commissioners Capital:  HCDPB Board of Commissioners 
− Referendum that established HCDPB in 1988 authorized levying up to 3 mils in ad valorem taxes. 
 
Assets 
− Land and construction in progress: $35 million 
− Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation: $71.73 million 
 
Teaching Hospital:  Yes 
 
Independence:  Yes 
 
Medical Staff 
− Staffing:  about 80 
− Physicians’ compensation for indigent care:  Yes 
− Physicians’ compensation for teaching:  Yes 
 
Unions : No. 

 
Unfunded Care 
− How funded, percent funded, & limits:  HCDPB is the agency that funds indigent care. 
− Contract with local government to fund indigent care:  HCDPB is the agency that funds indigent 

care. 
− Federal and/or state funding:  Yes 
 
Payor Mix 
 
Governmental Funds Enterprise (Proprietary) Funds 
68% Ad Valorem Taxes 38.5% Charges for Services-Lakeside Medical Center 
32% Other, which consists of the following: 28.9% Charges for Services-Healthy Palm Beaches 

5.7% Grants 17.3% Operating Grants 
4.4% Investments/Other 10.0% Charges for Services-Healey Center 

21.9% Charges for Services 5.3% Interest and Other 
 

  

Appendix I

I-16



Background Information 
Health Care District of Palm Beach County (HCDPB), West Palm Beach, FL 

 

 

Revenues 
HCDPB fiscal year ending September 30, 2010 (per HCDPB 2010 CAFR) 
 
 Governmental Funds Proprietary 

(Enterprise) Funds 
Total Revenues 

Ad Valorem Taxes $155,579,316   
Intergovernmental $9,130,674   
Charges for services $3,438,200   
Capital Grant $915,000   
Investment and Other 
Income 

$7,794,477   

Total Governmental 
Revenues 

  $176,857,667 

Net Patient Service 
Revenues 

 $55,701,061  

Other, Net  $2,822,338  
Total Proprietary 
(Operating) Revenues 

  $58,523,399 

Total Governmental and Proprietary Revenues $235,381,066 
 
Expenses 
HCDPB fiscal year ending September 30, 2010 (per HCDPB 2010 CAFR) 
− Total Governmental Expenses: $150 million 
− Total Proprietary (Operating) Expenses: $82 million 
 
Loss from Operations (per HCDPB 2010 CAFR, the operating loss is from the proprietary funds): 
− $24 million 

Appendix I

I-17



Background Information 
Tampa General Hospital (TGH), Tampa, FL 

 
Legal Structure, Governance, and Mission 
Ownership:  Private non-profit (Florida Health Sciences Center, Inc., d.b.a. Tampa General) 
Governance:  TGH Board of Directors 
Governance Change: 
− From hospital authority to a new non-profit under terms of a lease (1997) 
− The Hillsborough County Hospital Authority is created and governed by Special Act of the 

legislature, Chapter 96-449, Laws of Florida, as amended. Until October 1, 1997, the Authority 
owned and operated Tampa General Hospital. On October 1, 1997, Florida Health Sciences 
Center, Inc., assumed responsibility for owning and operating Tampa General Hospital pursuant 
to a Lease Agreement entered into with the Authority. Since the Authority no longer operates the 
hospital, its mission has evolved into a monitoring role in connection with the Lease and a 
commitment to the provision of health services to indigent citizens of Hillsborough County.1 

Operation:  Private non-profit 
Mission:  TGH is the area’s only level I trauma center and one of just four burn centers in Florida. 
With five medical helicopters we are able to transport critically injured or ill patients from 23 
surrounding counties to receive the advanced care they need. The hospital is home to one of the 
leading organ transplant centers in the country, having performed more than 6,000 adult solid organ 
transplants, including the state’s first successful heart transplant in 1985. TGH is a state-certified 
comprehensive stroke center, and its 32-bed Neuroscience Intensive Care Unit is the largest on the 
west coast of Florida. Other outstanding centers include cardiovascular, orthopedics, high risk and 
normal obstetrics, urology, ENT, endocrinology, and the Children's Medical Center, which features a 
nine-bed pediatric intensive care unit and one of just three outpatient pediatric dialysis units in the 
state. As the region's leading safety net hospital, Tampa General is committed to providing area 
residents with excellent and compassionate health care ranging from the simplest to the most complex 
medical services.2 
Beds:  1,004 total beds (945 acute care and 59 rehabilitation care beds) 
Employees: 6,700 
Clinics:  ? 
 
Sunshine and Sovereign Immunity 
Sunshine:  Yes Sovereign Immunity:  ? 
 
Hospital or Health System: Hospital 
 
Board and Autonomy:  15 member, volunteer Board of Directors 
 
Financial Relationship with County/City:  TGH receives patients funded by the Hillsborough 
County ½ cent sales tax.  That tax was authorized by the Legislature at the same time Miami-Dade’s 
was,  However, at the county level it was implemented through extraordinary vote of the then County 
Commission, and used to create the HC Health Care Plan.  TGH is one, but not the only hospital in the 
Plan’s provider network.   

 
  

                                                            
1 Extract from Hospital Authority Non‐Binding Request for Information (RFI) For Funding Opportunities Related to Health 
Related Services for Indigent Residents, dated February 2, 2007 

2 Extract from TGH website, http://www.tgh.org/index.htm 

Appendix I

I-18



Background Information 
Tampa General Hospital (TGH), Tampa, FL 

 
Budget Approval 
− Operating:  TGH Board of Directors 
− Capital:  ? 
 
Teaching Hospital:  Yes, academic. TGH is affiliated with the University of South Florida College Of 
Medicine and serves as the primary teaching hospital for the university. 
 
Independence:  The Authority does not operate, manage or oversee the operations of TGH, and has 
had no claims since leasing the hospital facilities to FHSC.3 
 
Medical Staff 
− Staffing:  1200 Community and university affiliated physicians 

  285 Resident physicians 
− Physicians’ compensation for indigent care:  ? 
− Physicians’ compensation for teaching:   ? 
 
Unions:  Not unionized 

 
Unfunded Care (2009 Annual Report) 
− How funded, percent funded, & limits:  Medicaid 14%, HCHCP 3%, Charity 7% 
− Indigent care: $917 million  

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Payor Mix (2009 Annual Report) 
− Managed care: 39.5% 
− Medicare: 27.3% 
− Medicaid & Hillsborough County Health Plan: 18.0% 
− All other: 15.2% 
 
Revenues (2009 Annual Report) – TGH fiscal year ending September 30, 2009 
− Medicare  $545 million 
− Medicaid and Hillsborough County Health Plan $128 million 
− Charity Care  $251 million 
− Total Revenue $993 million 
                                                            
3 Extract from Hospital Authority Request for Quotations For Not‐For‐Profit Individual and Organization Directors and 
Officers Liability Insurance Coverage for the Hillsborough County Hospital Authority 

CARE PROVIDED TO 
INDIGENT PATIENTS  2009  as a % 

of total 2008 as a % of 
total  2007  as a % of 

total 

Charges Foregone     

Medicaid  $545,186  14% $429,226 13%  $348,077  12% 

HCHCP  120,281  3% 101,789 3%  94,855  3% 

Charity  251,159  7% 230,786 7%  187,672  7% 

Total Indigent  $916,626  24% $761,801 24%  $630,604  22% 

Hospital Gross 
Charges  $3,789,550  $3,201,371 

 
$2,832,205  

Appendix I

I-19



Background Information 
Truman Medical Centers (TMC), Kansas City, MO 

 
Legal Structure, Governance, and Mission 
Ownership/Operation: Not-for-profit 501(c)(3) 
Governance: Board of Directors 
Governance change: 
− Incorporated as Kansas City General Hospital and Medical Center in 1962, one of the first public 

hospitals to restructure as not-for-profit 
− Renamed Truman Medical Center, Inc. in 1976 
Mission: Provide accessible, state of the art healthcare to Jackson County regardless of 

one’s ability to pay. 
Beds:   See attached “Truman Medical Centers Snapshot” (provided by TMC) 
Employees: 4,310 
 
Sunshine and Sovereign Immunity 
− Sunshine:  No 
− Sovereign Immunity:  No 
 
Hospital or Health System: Health System 
− Two adult acute care hospitals (TMC Hospital Hill and TMC Lakewood) 
− TMC Behavioral Health 
− Jackson County Health Department 
− Primary care practices throughout Eastern Jackson County  
 
Board and Autonomy 
− Up to 34 members on the Board of Directors 
− Nomination and selection process:  Board Development Committee nominates for full Board 

approval 
− TMC Board has autonomy from the City/County governments 

 
Financial Relationship with County/City 
− Approximately 8.5% of operating revenues come from the City of Kansas City and Jackson 

County 
− Jackson County:  FY 2009-10 adopted County budget included: 

Indigent Health Care Subsidy: $5,429,598 
Inmate Health Care:  (none listed) 
Debt Service:   $6,847,000 

− City of Kansas City:   $26,403,075 (FY 2009-10 adopted City budget)  
Note:  City of Kansas City has a “Health Levy” special revenue fund budgeted at 
$53,580,838 that primarily consists of $50 million from property taxes and $3 million from 
service charges 

 
Budget Approval 
− Operating:  TMC Board approves 
− Capital:  City/County sometimes, such as when TMC utilizes Jackson County bonds for capital 

needs 
 
Assets:  County owns land and some buildings; TMC owns equipment.  TMC can buy/sell/encumber 
real property and facilities. 

Appendix I

I-20



Background Information 
Truman Medical Centers (TMC), Kansas City, MO 

 
 
Bonds:  Can issue bonds, but TMC reports it can be challenging in this economic environment. 
 
Teaching Hospital:  Yes; primary teaching hospital for the University of Missouri-Kansas City 
School of Medicine. 
 
Independence:  Human resources and procurement are independent of government 
  
Medical Staff:  515; some physicians are employed by TMC, but the majority of physicians are 
affiliated with a multi-specialty group practice that provides medical care exclusively to TMC. 
 
Unions:  Yes.  TMC Board has authority to determine salaries and compensation for employees, 
executives and physicians employed directly. 
 
Contracting Authority:  Yes 
 
Unfunded Care:  City, County, and Disproportionate Share Hospital funding 
− Charity Care: $87,623,480 
− Bad Debt: $13,376,520 
 
Payor Mix 
 
Payor Source Acute Care 

Hospitals 
Hospita

Hill 
Lakewo Lakewood Care 

Center 
Jackson County Health 

Department 
Commercial 16% 14% 22% <1% 5% 
Medicaid 22% 26% 16% 71% 41% 
Medicaid MC 14% 11% 20% - - 
Medicare 16% 17% 12% <1% 7% 
Other 3% 3%  12%  
Self pay 29% 29% 30% 16% 10% 
Government - - - - 33% 
Managed Care - - - - 4% 
 
Patient Diversity 

 

Ethnicity Acute Care 
Hospitals Hospital Hi Lakewood Lakewood Care 

Center 
Jackson County Health 

Department 
African American 36% 32% 17% 16% 10% 
Asian 1% 4% 1% - 2% 
Caucasian 51% 59% 73% 3% 82% 
Hispanic 7% 3% 5% 6% 5% 
Other 5% 2% 4% - - 
American Indian - - - - 1% 

 

Appendix I

I-21



Appendix I

I-22



Appendix I

I-23



This page intentionally blank 

Appendix I

I-24



Hospital Governance Options

Teaching 
Hospital (Y/N)

Organized 
Labor union 

(Y/N)
John H Stroger Jr. Hospital Cook 
County

Chicago , IL
Y Y

Los Angeles County Dept of Health 
Services

Los Angeles County, 
CA Y Y

Jackson Health System
Miami Dade County, 
FL

Y Y

Memorial Health Care System (South 
Broward) & Broward Health (North 
Broward Hospital District)

Broward County, FL 1947 & 1951 Y ?

Parkland Health  & Hospital System Dallas, TX Y ?

University of Colorado Hospital Colorado 1991 6 Y N

Denver Health Medical Center Denver, CO 1996 2

Y N

Boston Medical Center Boston, MA 1996 1, 6 Y Y

Great Lakes Health System of Western 
New York

Buffalo, NY 2008 1 Unified Kaleida Health and 
the Eric County Medical 

Center into a new non‐profit 
(unification continues)

Y Y

Fresno County Valley Medical Center Fresno County, CA
1996 1 Y N

Oakwood Healthcare System Dearborn, MI 1991 6 Y Y

Shands Jacksonville Jacksonville, FL 1980 1 Y Y

Umass Memorial Health Care System Massachusetts 1998 1 Y Y

Middle Tennessee Medical Center Murfreesboro, TN 1996 5 N N

University of Arizona Healthcare Tucson, AZ 2010 1 Y ?

Grady Health System Atlanta, GA 2008 1,3 Y N

Truman Medical Centers Kansas City, MO 1960s 1 Y Y

Regional Medical Center at Memphis Memphis, TN 1981 1 Y N

Hillsborough County Hospital 
Authority / Tampa General Hospital

Tampa, FL
1997 1,4 Y N

Brackenridge Hospital and Children's 
Hospital

Austin, TX
1995 1,6 Y ?

Harborview Medical Center King County, WA Y Y

Sutter Medical Center of Santa Rosa, 
California

Santa Rosa, CA
1996 6 Y Y

Wishard Memorial Hospital Indianapolis, IN ? ?

Henry Ford Hospital Michigan, MI 1987 7
Shared Governance

Non‐profit hospital adopted 
"shared governance" model

Y ?

Nebraska Medical Center Omaha, NE 1 Y Y

Amarillo Hospital District Amarillo, TX

Detroit Medical Center/Vanguard 
Health Systems

Detroit, MI
2010

Acquired by Vanguard Health 
Systems

Y Y

Caritas Christi/Steward Health Care 
System

Massachusetts
2010 1

Acquired by Steward Health 
Care System LLC

Y Y

Memorial Medical Center Las Cruces, NM ? ?

Oklahoma University Medical Center Oklahoma City, OK ? ?

Contract management by non‐
profit 3rd Party

Other Variables

Type of ChangeLocation Notes
Links to 

References

Established new 
(Independent) hospital 

authority

Taxing District

Consolidated with existing 
non‐profit

Conversion to new non‐profit

Governance Description

‐Distinct independent government 
entity;                                                           
‐Functionally dedicated board;               
‐Statutory authority identifies 
election/appointment process;               
‐Controls own budget, issues bonds;     
‐Has autonomy in civil service, 
purchasing and contracting

Separate Government Entity 
With Taxing Capacity

 Effective 
Date of  

Governance 
Model 

Example of HospitalsGovernance Models

‐Is current structure and has worked since 
the 1970's;                                                           
‐Should provide base of political support 
for advocacy initiatives;                                     
‐Full faith and credit of county gov't to 
underpin bonding;                                              
‐Sovereign immunity applies to those 
employed by JHS;                                               
‐Sole beneficiary of ad valorem property 
taxes earmarked for indigent care;                 
‐Exempt from taxes

‐Levels of autonomy for PHT vary based 
on leadership both at Trust and on 
Commission;                                                   
‐dependent upon gov't purchasing and 
personnel policies and procedures;           
‐Sunshine law provisions occasionally 
hamper internal communications;             
‐county can delegate programs/services 
and over‐ride PHT decisions

‐ Major decisions made by elected 
officials;                                                       
‐May designate operations to semi‐
autonomous board;                                   
‐ Have access to local gov't tax 
support;                                                       
‐ No separate legal structure

Direct Local Government 
Control/Operation

Characteristics

‐Sets own millage rates;                                    
‐Has both authority and responsibility for 
use of public funds;                                            
‐Still has some political ties based on way 
legislation is written and board is 
elected/appointed;                                            
‐Has sovereign immunity as unit of gov't;      
‐Develops and adopts own policies and 
procedures and labor agreements;                 
‐Tax exempt

‐Subject to Sunshine law;                             
funding levels vary based on economy 
and property values;                                     
‐Board members have high 
public/political profile;                                 
‐have to use own credit status to raise 
capital;                                                             
‐not eligible for philanthropy

For‐Profit Management  Managed as a private organization

‐No longer only hospital designated 
eligible for County funding for indigent 
care;                                                                 
‐Must create and maintain own credit 
rating;                                                              
‐No sovereign immunity;                              
‐Have to compete with other 
community based organizations for 
talented board leadership and local 
philanthropy;                                                  
‐ "Non‐related" revenue subject to 
taxation

‐Eligible recipient for philanthropy without 
using separate foundation;                               
‐Not required to have organized labor;          
‐Can develop and implement own policies 
and procedures for nomination and 
selection of board of directors, purchasing 
and contracts;                                                     
‐Exempt from income, property and sales 
taxes on all "related" revenue

‐Tax exempt under Sect. 501(c)(3) of 
IRS;                                                                
‐Local gov't may maintain some role 
in governance (eg seat on, or 
appointment to, board) and/or 
funding (pay for specified services to 
specified patients);                                    
‐Sale, transfer or long term lease of 
buildings/assets of gov't;                          
‐Third party controls operations 
including human resources, 
purchasing and contracts   

Nonprofit/Third Party 
Management

Appendix J

J-1



This page intentionally blank 

Appendix J

J-2



South Florida Acute Care Hospitals 
(Federal, State and Local Funding Sources)

Financial Analysis ~ Hospitals in South Florida ~ FY2009
Source:  AHCA Financial Data, FYE2009

Hospital County Beds Total Expenses
Medicaid 
Revenue

Medicaid 
Deductions

Medicaid HMO 
Revenue

Medicaid HMO 
Deductions Bad Debt Other Charity

Medicaid 
Shortfall PMATF Total

Other Gov't. 
Funds

Net 
Uncompensated 

Care

Taxes & 
Licenses 
Expense

Inpatient Services 
Revenue

Outpatient 
Services 
Revenue

Total Patient 
Services Revenue

Broward Health-Broward General Medical CenBroward 716 $399,777,301 $266,150,135 $206,572,325 $191,494,893 $146,654,079 $170,477,277 $216,647,512 $248,032,493 $4,294,012 $639,451,294 $71,683,906 $567,767,388 $0 $1,144,374,602 $594,852,434 $1,739,227,036
Broward Health-Coral Springs Medical Center Broward 200 $128,088,074 $44,775,133 $32,981,867 $38,197,866 $30,029,079 $59,320,206 $31,333,199 $44,797,177 $1,522,887 $136,973,469 $13,018,541 $123,954,928 $0 $322,190,710 $261,315,739 $583,506,449
Broward Health-Imperial Point Medical Center Broward 204 $92,840,031 $17,392,320 $13,320,949 $17,457,309 $13,187,005 $37,820,461 $14,556,142 $18,606,242 $1,044,567 $72,027,412 $8,703,089 $63,324,323 $0 $215,351,477 $194,109,233 $409,460,710
Broward Health-North Broward Medical CenterBroward 409 $184,208,777 $43,737,776 $36,054,756 $43,968,435 $34,754,655 $86,929,623 $77,820,692 $49,973,881 $2,120,591 $216,844,787 $31,152,713 $185,692,074 $0 $514,236,684 $261,181,753 $775,418,437
Cleveland Clinic Florida Weston Broward 150 $146,040,609 $6,887,777 $7,765,197 $6,068,950 $6,842,063 $13,303,444 $3,114,209 $11,718,945 $2,512,081 $30,648,679 $0 $30,648,679 $504,970 $398,929,626 $256,195,653 $655,125,279
Holy Cross Hospital Broward 571 $292,912,751 $44,131,585 $40,685,046 $23,927,801 $21,559,508 $32,782,676 $12,162,135 $49,080,894 $3,239,915 $97,265,620 $0 $97,265,620 $151,981 $912,015,323 $602,416,229 $1,514,431,552
Memorial Hospital Miramar Broward 178 $116,186,272 $56,164,393 $42,782,501 $20,276,421 $14,550,374 $33,107,418 $15,269,042 $41,300,586 $1,697,811 $91,374,857 $1,268,889 $90,105,968 $0 $285,739,857 $268,228,032 $553,967,889
Memorial Hospital Pembroke Broward 301 $108,585,529 $40,420,559 $34,723,325 $24,499,093 $19,611,793 $41,247,087 $47,865,488 $41,276,212 $1,331,039 $131,719,826 $3,083,538 $128,636,288 $0 $267,285,655 $272,524,838 $539,810,493
Memorial Hospital West Broward 304 $297,242,934 $107,649,986 $87,411,368 $43,546,785 $32,478,240 $59,820,066 $60,861,496 $87,386,834 $4,174,049 $212,242,445 $4,743,987 $207,498,458 $0 $770,072,940 $612,645,096 $1,382,718,036
Memorial Regional Hospital Broward 1014 $697,303,144 $356,605,670 $276,077,600 $151,474,864 $107,844,957 $162,862,602 $256,541,519 $251,900,344 $8,128,944 $679,433,409 $46,673,341 $632,760,068 $0 $1,658,347,286 $1,025,187,148 $2,683,534,434
North Shore Medical Center FMC Campus Broward 459 $53,990,779 $27,175,727 $23,175,552 $15,917,542 $14,405,563 $5,073,566 $8,802,290 $30,880,416 $726,932 $45,483,204 $0 $45,483,204 $296,066 $263,276,125 $83,947,207 $347,223,332
Northwest Medical Center Broward 215 $128,484,935 $51,622,041 $47,990,764 $27,106,725 $25,057,053 $22,322,186 $18,386,647 $59,960,590 $1,690,354 $102,359,777 $0 $102,359,777 $890,158 $548,652,866 $224,273,306 $772,926,172
Plantation General Hospital Broward 264 $119,453,613 $168,822,515 $137,175,717 $91,947,684 $86,235,030 $34,135,272 $14,524,632 $174,489,126 $1,561,499 $224,710,529 $0 $224,710,529 $518,740 $467,676,544 $169,055,069 $636,731,613
University Hospital & Medical Center Broward 317 $91,658,269 $18,636,754 $16,615,370 $21,063,368 $18,546,623 $19,790,486 $10,324,581 $28,284,151 $1,048,139 $59,447,357 $0 $59,447,357 $809,261 $357,261,255 $171,806,530 $529,067,785
Westside Regional Medical Center Broward 224 $145,309,379 $28,494,868 $25,951,670 $21,348,629 $18,539,828 $24,025,883 $12,016,752 $36,078,062 $2,145,256 $74,265,953 $0 $74,265,953 $668,972 $663,319,410 $197,533,151 $860,852,561

Total Acute $3,002,082,397 $1,278,667,239 $1,029,284,007 $738,296,365 $590,295,850 $803,018,253 $800,226,336 $1,173,765,954 $37,238,076 $2,814,248,619 $180,328,004 $2,633,920,615 $3,840,148 $8,788,730,360 $5,195,271,418 $13,984,001,778

Aventura Hospital and Medical Center Miami-Dade 407 $199,924,435 $70,575,301 $66,209,722 $42,461,009 $37,642,480 $31,102,540 $28,560,835 $85,683,244 $2,944,795 $148,291,414 $0 $148,291,414 $2,499,926 $959,794,848 $284,014,538 $1,243,809,386
Baptist Hospital of Miami, Inc. Miami-Dade 680 $725,970,825 $330,422,385 $266,603,341 $78,587,674 $67,905,584 $97,797,245 $122,290,683 $235,576,068 $10,927,756 $466,591,752 $0 $466,591,752 $314,587 $2,031,315,918 $970,006,179 $3,001,322,097
Bascom Palmer Eye Inst/Anne Bates Leach EyMiami-Dade 100 $81,532,460 $21,082,622 $17,006,357 $7,541,688 $4,323,030 $7,053,281 $13,333,215 $12,690,595 $769,079 $33,846,170 $0 $33,846,170 $0 $4,183,304 $265,971,418 $270,154,722
Coral Gables Hospital Miami-Dade 247 $71,537,971 $31,695,974 $27,564,658 $17,063,934 $15,369,984 $5,366,050 $6,396,735 $34,532,883 $973,613 $47,269,281 $0 $47,269,281 $1,316,960 $292,125,061 $123,048,114 $415,173,175
Doctors Hospital Miami-Dade 281 $160,508,157 $21,304,202 $19,515,192 $6,844,316 $6,126,847 $22,598,747 $6,035,783 $18,753,621 $1,903,249 $49,291,400 $0 $49,291,400 $15,740 $403,780,540 $252,112,663 $655,893,203
Hialeah Hospital Miami-Dade 378 $107,864,993 $148,656,137 $129,741,980 $30,513,768 $26,505,698 $17,227,613 $15,495,068 $129,397,190 $1,627,400 $163,747,271 $0 $163,747,271 $1,450,599 $567,176,508 $152,592,928 $719,769,436
Homestead Hospital Miami-Dade 142 $188,573,857 $110,648,137 $91,937,469 $70,137,151 $52,267,018 $78,745,135 $74,763,187 $97,776,128 $2,084,598 $253,369,048 $0 $253,369,048 $37,942 $449,510,079 $284,769,144 $734,279,223
Jackson Memorial Hospital Miami-Dade 2139 $1,625,681,833 $943,808,545 $529,203,251 $262,543,000 $126,020,640 $583,901,326 $1,073,847,090 $188,325,532 $15,065,601 $1,861,139,549 $350,277,832 $1,510,861,717 $0 $3,038,363,518 $1,162,002,054 $4,200,365,572
Kendall Regional Medical Center Miami-Dade 412 $191,858,307 $174,811,568 $153,027,526 $52,581,811 $44,979,055 $35,292,503 $44,961,553 $163,382,784 $2,809,636 $246,446,476 $0 $246,446,476 $2,109,453 $865,057,331 $394,980,936 $1,260,038,267
Larkin Community Hospital Miami-Dade 132 $46,816,961 $16,636,446 $14,106,718 $5,751,057 $3,593,144 $6,020,243 $561,497 $11,825,678 $655,962 $19,063,380 $0 $19,063,380 $531,621 $142,788,747 $35,638,549 $178,427,296
Mercy Hospital Miami-Dade 473 $234,672,696 $61,097,616 $56,319,256 $17,049,781 $15,939,508 $19,321,565 $12,445,322 $54,955,284 $2,965,239 $89,687,410 $0 $89,687,410 $33,574 $705,571,281 $354,276,800 $1,059,848,081
Metropolitan Hospital of Miami Miami-Dade 146 $46,288,089 $25,043,369 $20,159,081 $0 $0 $16,768,725 $99,625 $14,124,713 $600,620 $31,593,683 $0 $31,593,683 $547,466 $138,085,635 $54,015,624 $192,101,259
Miami Children's Hospital Miami-Dade 289 $340,523,656 $426,684,995 $320,968,472 $197,475,385 $150,474,804 $9,618,075 $7,232,337 $262,755,861 $4,539,407 $284,145,680 $0 $284,145,680 $4,539,407 $635,655,178 $382,812,439 $1,018,467,617
Mount Sinai Medical Center Miami-Dade 955 $397,617,953 $111,730,059 $91,269,602 $38,198,600 $29,588,019 $47,560,082 $34,611,498 $86,454,270 $4,490,018 $173,115,868 $0 $173,115,868 $60,973 $1,086,947,815 $645,857,994 $1,732,805,809
North Shore Medical Center Miami-Dade 816 $204,812,283 $166,451,296 $135,360,669 $97,729,018 $80,824,519 $17,470,126 $44,363,445 $170,087,485 $2,828,734 $234,749,790 $0 $234,749,790 $2,734,627 $809,135,978 $364,618,250 $1,173,754,228
Palm Springs General Hospital Miami-Dade 247 $61,119,424 $11,756,420 $9,716,561 $0 $0 $18,104,151 $0 $6,289,578 $949,988 $25,343,717 $0 $25,343,717 $515,252 $148,187,851 $61,485,086 $209,672,937
Palmetto General Hospital Miami-Dade 360 $215,790,253 $213,747,432 $185,600,500 $74,053,078 $63,001,735 $17,091,947 $30,883,066 $201,383,086 $3,176,351 $252,534,450 $0 $252,534,450 $2,413,474 $951,384,171 $363,856,505 $1,315,240,676
South Miami Hospital Miami-Dade 467 $393,692,061 $156,205,546 $124,886,036 $20,270,389 $18,229,070 $44,290,002 $42,831,569 $96,768,937 $5,891,230 $189,781,738 $0 $189,781,738 $241,525 $890,373,409 $608,718,669 $1,499,092,078
University of Miami Hospital Miami-Dade 560 $265,977,251 $95,266,975 $83,604,967 $48,931,889 $40,388,829 $24,082,731 $16,151,329 $92,036,405 $2,566,301 $134,836,766 $0 $134,836,766 $44,572 $994,225,875 $205,922,716 $1,200,148,591
University of Miami Hospital/Clinics Miami-Dade 40 $238,592,419 $38,690,052 $32,820,901 $14,278,675 $11,923,510 $7,991,767 $1,098,159 $29,483,875 $2,188,091 $40,761,892 $0 $40,761,892 $0 $90,763,420 $737,381,602 $828,145,022
Westchester General Hospital Miami-Dade 197 $59,787,906 $17,005,536 $13,754,777 $13,362,545 $6,884,087 $2,591,247 $6,305,408 $9,433,359 $861,219 $19,191,233 $0 $19,191,233 $738,855 $138,473,844 $23,557,582 $162,031,426

Total Acute $5,859,143,790 $3,193,320,613 $2,389,377,036 $1,095,374,768 $801,987,561 $1,109,995,101 $1,582,267,404 $2,001,716,578 $70,818,887 $4,764,797,970 $350,277,832 $4,414,520,138 $20,146,553 $15,342,900,311 $7,727,639,790 $23,070,540,101

Bethesda Healthcare System Palm Beach 401 $223,349,147 $189,069,432 $158,031,194 $44,430,241 $34,561,136 $49,297,011 $46,948,922 $150,738,408 $0 $246,984,341 $0 $246,984,341 $2,673,217 $772,120,498 $473,926,480 $1,246,046,978
Boca Raton Community Hospital Palm Beach 400 $332,151,151 $15,621,633 $17,684,584 $4,418,709 $3,752,109 $25,689,849 $4,518,806 $16,719,600 $3,376,742 $50,304,997 $0 $50,304,997 $196,098 $614,106,542 $797,021,504 $1,411,128,046
Columbia Hospital Palm Beach 250 $87,791,014 $35,310,722 $31,172,164 $24,194,631 $20,829,371 $25,892,580 $24,738,917 $40,804,539 $1,061,704 $92,497,740 $0 $92,497,740 $1,023,415 $313,365,492 $153,191,349 $466,556,841
Delray Medical Center, Inc. Palm Beach 493 $224,363,202 $63,122,815 $58,723,239 $17,522,293 $15,993,859 $16,630,452 $28,323,348 $61,921,591 $3,353,631 $110,229,022 $5,495,933 $104,733,089 $2,897,640 $1,098,329,238 $315,744,813 $1,414,074,051
Good Samaritan Medical Center Palm Beach 333 $108,760,037 $33,984,426 $29,527,271 $16,873,107 $14,775,956 $11,410,367 $16,000,759 $32,918,899 $1,383,869 $61,713,894 $0 $61,713,894 $1,798,041 $311,592,895 $174,273,928 $485,866,823
JFK Medical Center Palm Beach 460 $354,422,045 $180,823,249 $164,638,302 $55,894,321 $43,363,838 $50,040,043 $100,415,320 $169,230,862 $5,001,084 $324,687,309 $0 $324,687,309 $1,973,085 $1,566,768,614 $597,150,895 $2,163,919,509
Jupiter Medical Center Palm Beach 163 $157,196,823 $15,456,684 $12,224,521 $4,540,561 $4,092,313 $17,988,227 $4,156,991 $12,050,296 $1,965,186 $36,160,700 $0 $36,160,700 $470,971 $388,154,854 $348,625,963 $736,780,817
Lakeside Medical Center (Glades General HosPalm Beach 73 $36,803,379 $28,808,762 $23,538,178 $0 $0 $8,846,290 $3,564,576 $14,031,127 $78,644 $26,520,637 $8,450,000 $18,070,637 $7,780 $62,534,933 $48,988,583 $111,523,516
Palm Beach Gardens Medical Ctr. Palm Beach 199 $150,336,938 $21,419,658 $19,509,646 $10,348,635 $9,116,723 $10,613,574 $22,738,593 $22,280,909 $2,119,063 $57,752,139 $0 $57,752,139 $1,780,558 $587,095,244 $165,560,662 $752,655,906
Palms West Hospital Palm Beach 175 $121,321,707 $111,081,280 $96,202,462 $29,638,996 $24,657,223 $26,560,475 $23,427,534 $97,232,084 $1,631,603 $148,851,696 $0 $148,851,696 $1,040,207 $470,630,103 $251,932,650 $722,562,753
St. Mary's Medical Center Palm Beach 463 $216,586,513 $287,240,660 $230,279,632 $72,031,143 $59,401,505 $25,113,855 $99,976,470 $213,182,936 $3,067,029 $341,340,290 $4,853,450 $336,486,840 $2,992,926 $738,639,640 $278,553,260 $1,017,192,900
Wellington Regional Medical Center Palm Beach 143 $120,458,701 $58,005,521 $50,029,130 $17,925,295 $15,024,409 $23,037,907 $22,470,599 $48,330,730 $1,532,944 $95,372,180 $0 $95,372,180 $2,217,351 $335,320,186 $211,629,044 $546,949,230
West Boca Medical Center, Inc. Palm Beach 195 $109,147,083 $49,951,663 $43,399,971 $16,496,804 $13,235,138 $10,738,904 $6,267,613 $40,876,991 $1,870,941 $59,754,449 $0 $59,754,449 $1,768,602 $315,630,296 $144,618,605 $460,248,901

Total Acute $2,242,687,740 $1,089,896,505 $934,960,294 $314,314,736 $258,803,580 $301,859,534 $403,548,448 $920,318,972 $26,442,440 $1,652,169,394 $18,799,383 $1,633,370,011 $20,839,891 $7,574,288,535 $3,961,217,736 $11,535,506,271

Appendix K

K-1



South Florida Acute Care Hospitals 
(Federal, State and Local Funding Sources)

Financial Analysis ~ Hospitals in South Flori
Source:  AHCA Financial Data, FYE2009

Hospital County
Broward Health-Broward General Medical CenBroward
Broward Health-Coral Springs Medical Center Broward
Broward Health-Imperial Point Medical Center Broward
Broward Health-North Broward Medical CenterBroward
Cleveland Clinic Florida Weston Broward
Holy Cross Hospital Broward
Memorial Hospital Miramar Broward
Memorial Hospital Pembroke Broward
Memorial Hospital West Broward
Memorial Regional Hospital Broward
North Shore Medical Center FMC Campus Broward
Northwest Medical Center Broward
Plantation General Hospital Broward
University Hospital & Medical Center Broward
Westside Regional Medical Center Broward

Total Acute

Aventura Hospital and Medical Center Miami-Dade
Baptist Hospital of Miami, Inc. Miami-Dade
Bascom Palmer Eye Inst/Anne Bates Leach EyMiami-Dade
Coral Gables Hospital Miami-Dade
Doctors Hospital Miami-Dade
Hialeah Hospital Miami-Dade
Homestead Hospital Miami-Dade
Jackson Memorial Hospital Miami-Dade
Kendall Regional Medical Center Miami-Dade
Larkin Community Hospital Miami-Dade
Mercy Hospital Miami-Dade
Metropolitan Hospital of Miami Miami-Dade
Miami Children's Hospital Miami-Dade
Mount Sinai Medical Center Miami-Dade
North Shore Medical Center Miami-Dade
Palm Springs General Hospital Miami-Dade
Palmetto General Hospital Miami-Dade
South Miami Hospital Miami-Dade
University of Miami Hospital Miami-Dade
University of Miami Hospital/Clinics Miami-Dade
Westchester General Hospital Miami-Dade

Total Acute

Bethesda Healthcare System Palm Beach
Boca Raton Community Hospital Palm Beach
Columbia Hospital Palm Beach
Delray Medical Center, Inc. Palm Beach
Good Samaritan Medical Center Palm Beach
JFK Medical Center Palm Beach
Jupiter Medical Center Palm Beach
Lakeside Medical Center (Glades General HosPalm Beach
Palm Beach Gardens Medical Ctr. Palm Beach
Palms West Hospital Palm Beach
St. Mary's Medical Center Palm Beach
Wellington Regional Medical Center Palm Beach
West Boca Medical Center, Inc. Palm Beach

Total Acute

Other 
Operating 

Revenue
Non- operating 

Revenue Total Revenue Income Tax
Licensed 

Beds
Acute Pt. 

Days Salary Expense FTEs
Pt. Care Salary 

Expense
Pt. Care 

FTEs
$35,129,834 $82,681,476 $1,857,038,346 $0 716 160,234 $163,810,417 2,930.1 $120,687,726 1,991.5

$2,772,866 $14,058,365 $600,337,680 $0 200 48,991 $55,417,571 937.6 $42,044,714 654.6
$3,099,171 $9,663,347 $422,223,228 $0 204 38,149 $38,661,347 674.0 $28,115,236 458.6

$10,167,171 $39,185,720 $824,771,328 $0 409 78,499 $77,158,160 1,317.0 $54,194,978 861.7
$532,868 $270,638 $655,928,785 $0 150 45,853 $52,105,962 922.3 $38,430,895 671.1

$3,626,743 $89,478,763 $1,607,537,058 $0 571 92,964 $155,868,784 2,223.5 $68,873,263 1,095.5
$723,994 $1,932,563 $556,624,446 $0 178 35,893 $54,987,837 847.1 $38,636,318 569.0

$1,394,184 $3,903,388 $545,108,065 $0 301 29,525 $50,900,482 798.9 $36,234,105 546.4
$3,065,705 $7,737,960 $1,393,521,701 $0 304 94,289 $140,388,956 2,170.2 $98,151,103 1,460.2

$24,687,022 $69,541,459 $2,777,762,915 $0 1,014 213,940 $340,650,430 5,060.3 $222,419,154 3,319.0
$129,352 $1,920,042 $349,272,726 $0 459 25,031 $19,099,928 322.3 $14,866,207 245.4

$1,196,226 $1,577,107 $775,699,505 $1,333,969 215 48,789 $41,333,009 674.2 $30,760,906 469.7
$1,568,584 $227,745 $638,527,942 $0 264 51,200 $38,438,149 584.3 $28,590,993 430.9

$454,115 $19,401,617 $548,923,517 $0 317 43,666 $31,501,825 558.5 $20,800,344 345.2
$1,190,422 $24,074,719 $886,117,702 -$13,018,176 224 57,172 $44,963,226 722.5 $32,725,085 494.4

$89,738,257 $365,654,909 $14,439,394,944 -$11,684,207 5,526 1,064,195 $1,305,286,083 20,742.8 $875,531,027 13,613.2

$572,061 $3,606,105 $1,247,987,552 $0 407 97,244 $65,589,168 1,098.6 $52,852,959 836.8
$7,920,397 $2,193,042 $3,011,435,536 $0 680 183,544 $240,339,300 4,047.0 $186,827,638 2,971.8
$3,012,491 $3,135 $273,170,348 $0 100 656 $32,855,719 568.0 $18,320,806 287.3

$339,499 $93,775 $415,606,449 $0 247 27,576 $24,673,766 430.3 $18,706,077 315.2
$841,299 -$239,708 $656,494,794 $0 281 38,920 $54,692,402 928.1 $40,561,305 654.7
$960,087 $3,960,664 $724,690,187 -$3,466,000 378 55,850 $40,908,342 703.7 $32,466,782 540.9

$1,308,122 $123,125 $735,710,470 $0 142 47,090 $64,054,360 1,069.3 $52,120,639 825.9
$27,150,516 $581,119,005 $4,808,635,093 $0 2,139 477,435 $750,205,650 11,025.8 $465,388,097 6,313.9

$2,623,219 $501,779 $1,263,163,265 $0 412 72,317 $62,770,753 1,089.4 $46,774,443 768.5
$861,192 $111,734 $179,400,222 $0 132 29,537 $22,306,645 490.9 $14,225,079 321.7

$6,578,249 $49,406,258 $1,115,832,588 $0 473 74,631 $87,834,283 1,515.5 $57,215,416 925.1
$608,755 $13,176 $192,723,190 $0 146 23,299 $21,439,607 490.9 $15,462,153 321.4

$23,840,647 $56,449,244 $1,098,757,508 $0 289 64,819 $176,759,733 2,538.6 $78,664,892 1,199.7
$21,542,315 $1,443,551 $1,755,791,675 $0 955 138,092 $140,114,965 2,824.7 $87,624,307 1,711.0

$2,371,398 $4,495,457 $1,180,621,083 -$1,521,000 816 98,081 $80,589,963 1,365.6 $62,623,401 1,019.2
$568,054 $3,495,821 $213,736,812 $0 247 36,956 $26,513,423 613.5 $17,628,615 402.2

$4,346,062 $1,213,287 $1,320,800,025 -$4,909,000 360 95,546 $78,141,155 1,339.3 $61,979,670 1,008.7
$3,754,622 $967,048 $1,503,813,748 $0 467 80,838 $131,614,970 2,235.8 $102,716,580 1,626.5
$5,721,015 $6,312,171 $1,212,181,777 $0 560 112,918 $80,277,930 1,452.5 $58,111,088 937.9
$2,652,824 $1,000 $830,798,846 $0 40 7,988 $56,941,360 960.6 $34,060,566 580.2
$1,074,900 $22,638 $163,128,964 $0 197 53,003 $28,839,899 663.3 $17,380,878 383.0

$118,647,724 $715,292,307 $23,904,480,132 -$9,896,000 9,468 1,816,340 $2,267,463,393 37,451.4 $1,521,711,391 23,951.6

$2,220,479 $12,219,698 $1,260,487,155 $0 401 96,887 $88,155,335 1,764.0 $68,927,208 1,285.1
$306,026 $16,508,340 $1,427,942,412 $0 400 85,657 $110,224,545 2,004.1 $75,328,186 1,271.3

$1,604,199 $2,936,267 $471,097,307 $5,515,498 250 42,332 $27,889,473 483.1 $17,388,536 292.6
$1,163,077 $6,969,915 $1,422,207,043 -$8,353,000 493 96,122 $79,306,213 1,342.2 $62,991,566 1,054.3

$803,640 $4,955,339 $491,625,802 $463,000 333 37,280 $37,752,440 679.5 $25,662,250 426.1
$8,823,154 $2,686,609 $2,175,429,272 -$1,800,405 460 117,000 $102,622,964 1,632.9 $79,570,212 1,222.9
$2,745,697 $21,112,352 $760,638,866 $0 163 47,206 $83,320,076 1,241.5 $48,487,367 673.7

$589,867 $8,778,578 $120,891,961 $0 73 9,795 $16,459,246 264.5 $8,960,481 150.3
$346,700 $1,898,395 $754,901,001 -$685,000 199 50,498 $44,061,927 718.7 $33,544,133 543.0

$2,048,769 $10,576,038 $735,187,560 -$4,060,596 175 47,329 $42,112,340 691.6 $31,592,392 493.0
$5,209,594 $7,102,488 $1,029,504,982 $13,551,000 463 102,921 $92,619,357 1,445.5 $73,854,821 1,070.6
$2,490,309 $1,995,567 $551,435,106 $628,000 143 42,246 $39,199,894 703.8 $29,048,602 491.9
$1,240,003 $168,802 $461,657,706 -$3,217,000 195 43,151 $43,830,038 692.9 $34,434,702 538.7

$29,591,514 $97,908,388 $11,663,006,173 $2,041,497 3,748 818,424 $807,553,848 13,664.3 $589,790,456 9,513.5

Appendix K

K-2



Appendix L 
 

L-1 
 

Dissenting View of a Taskforce Member 
 

Hospital Governance Task Force Dissenting Opinion 
 
The Hospital Governance Task Force (HGT) was a unique and valuable opportunity for a diverse 
group of community leaders to explore, discuss, and learn more about the governance and related 
issues impacting Jackson Health System.  The group included subject matter experts on hospital 
governance structures and also solicited the input on several major public healthcare systems on 
the strengths and weaknesses of their models.  Although brief (less than 20 hours total), the task 
force was able to learn much on the topic and Mr. Zapata should be commended for his 
leadership. 
 
Given the short duration of the task force and  the lack of any legal, financial, operational, 
strategic or other due diligence or modeling of alternative governance models as they would 
impact Jackson Health System, it would be inappropriate for the task force to author any specific 
recommendations to the County Commissioners at this point.  The governance discussion is 
inherently complex and therefore any change in the governance structure is a relatively long 
process to evaluate and implement. It is clearly not to be considered a solution for the immediate 
financial issues impacting Jackson.  As Mr. Larry Gage, a national known hospital governance 
expert, reported to the task force “effective governance is a tool, not a panacea.”  Therefore, 
Jackson needs to remain focused on the very real operational and other issues currently 
impacting its ability to achieve sustainability in the short term.   
 
Jackson is currently going through a major leadership transition with the hiring of a new Chief 
Executive Officer.  In addition, the County recently approved the formation of a financial 
recovery board to oversee Jackson which is in the process of being populated.  The financial 
recovery board is not a governance change, per se, as it is contemplated in ordinance 25A, but it 
does serve the purpose of reducing the size of the board and populating the board with subject 
matter experts in relevant areas of focus.  These changes have great potential and should be 
allowed to crystallize and mature prior to introducing a further complexity of a new governance 
structure. This will provide Jackson the best opportunity to achieve immediate sustainability 
which needs to be the paramount focus.   There can be no distractions from this vital objective 
although continued study of the optimal governance structure for Jackson is advisable.   
 
The National Association of Public Hospitals and Health Systems reported that “before 
considering a major reorganization, it is essential to evaluate the challenges and obstacles that 
face a given hospital or health system – and to determine which of these challenges can be 
improved through improved structure or governance.”  The following are some operational 
issues that need to be addressed regardless of the governance structure: 

 Develop and implement a contemporary overall strategic plan. 

 Secure cash resources to avoid permanent and irreversible consequences to core service 
levels and mission due to current cash crisis. 

 Develop and implement a primary care and outpatient services strategy. 

 Reduce length of stay to clinical optimal levels. 



Appendix L 
 

L-2 
 

 Provide budgeting and other financial reporting with integrity and credibility. 

 Maximize the leverage of the Jackson Health Plan. 

 Shift the labor cost curve through universal adoption of evidence based medicine 
guidelines; treating each patient in the most cost effective, clinically appropriate setting; 
improving patient throughput and other measures. 

 Optimize the relationship with the University of Miami. 

 Position Jackson for success in an ACO and/or capitated environment. 

 Enhance information technology solutions to achieve meaningful use standards. 

 Position Jackson to participate successfully in the HHS Patient Safety Initiative Funding 
Program. 

 
These are several of the mission critical objectives for Jackson to immediately pursue within the 
revised executive leadership team and newly enacted financial recovery board.  
 
There are certain attributes of any governance model that the task force believes are important 
for Jackson Health System.  Miami-Dade County will always be a vital component of the 
governance structure of Jackson, even if a new model is ultimately selected, as it has the inherent 
responsibility to provide healthcare services to the underserved population of the County.  Any 
newly created entity would undoubtedly seek financial support from the County, via the 
taxpayers, to support the valuable mission of Jackson.  Therefore, the governance conversations 
need to remain open, transparent and in the sunshine to continue to preserve these interests.  
 
The impact of a governance change on all sources of reimbursement, on the outstanding bond 
obligations, on the pension program, on sovereign immunity, and on other major components of 
the public healthcare model needs to be fully vetted to avoid any unintended consequences. It is 
irresponsible to provide specific recommendations on a governance model change, i.e. not-for-
profit, without a full understanding of how a change in governance may impact these factors. 
The taskforce has not studied these issues with any level of specificity and is not in a position to 
make such recommendations.  
 
As noted, any fundamental change in governance structure is a long term consideration as the 
financial recovery board should be allowed to address the immediate issues impacting Jackson.  
Continued exploration, including moving towards appropriate due diligence, should continue to 
be pursued to identify the optimal governance model for Jackson in the future.  
 
Conclusions 

 Jackson Health System is an important community resource and its mission is in 
jeopardy under the status quo. 

 Greater accountability is required for the fulfillment of the mission within a sound 
financial framework, given budgetary restraints, reduced federal and state funding and 
competitive pressures. 



Appendix L 
 

L-3 
 

 The evaluation of optimal governance models should continue in an effort to identify the 
most efficient and effective structure to allow Jackson Health System to fulfill its 
mission for decades to come.  Any recommendations should be data driven and fully 
vetted to ensure that this very important assignment is handled with the highest degree of 
professionalism and responsibility. 

 Legal and financial experts need to be engaged to perform the necessary due diligence.  
Any new structure should maintain Sovereign Immunity which goes hand in hand with 
the Sunshine Laws. The revenue streams should be enhanced, not decreased with any 
new structure. The eligibility for ad valorem and ½ cent sales tax should be fully studied 
to ensure continued availability to fund the mission of Jackson in any recommended 
model.  

 The taskforce never considered or evaluated the risk to federal funding such as 
Intergovernmental Transfers (IGT) and Certified Public Expenditures (CPE) that a new 
structure such as not-for profit could possibly jeopardize.  These federal monies are a 
real possibility and are being strategically pursued at JHS.  A public structure is 
necessary to qualify as a recipient for these funds currently.  

 The current effort has been very valuable but not sufficient to formulate any concrete 
solutions or recommendations.  

 Task force membership should be re-evaluated to remove any task force members with a 
conflict of interest. Several members are direct competitors of Jackson and others have 
competing interests.  

 A structure change to a private entity would most likely mandate a cessation in the 
Public Retirement System (FRS and PHT retirement) and the cost of doing so needs to 
be evaluated. The taskforce never explored or even recognized this risk which has the 
potential of significantly increasing the contribution from the employer. 

 The Miami-Dade County Commission is an integral component of the governance of 
Jackson Health System and will continue to be so under any governance model. The tax 
payers of Miami Dade provide significant funding to Jackson and their elected officials 
are very relevant to its governance process.  

 The immediate focus should be on developing a strategy for Jackson Health System to 
make it a more competitive alternative in the market place to serve everyone’s healthcare 
needs in Miami-Dade County. The new executive team and the new financial recovery 
board should be given an opportunity to succeed with great assistance from the County.  

 All current efforts regarding Jackson Health System should be directed towards averting 
a reduction in scope of services provided to County residents and to avoiding any 
deterioration to the great mission of Jackson. The operational issues denoted in this 
report should be the primary focus.  

 
Submitted by: 
Martha Baker, RN, President 
SEIU Healthcare Florida, Local 1991 























Updated 05/21/2012 

SUMMARY OF COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS FOR MIAMI-DADE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

DESCRIPTION COMPENSATION/BENEFIT AUTHORITY 
Annual Salary $6,000 Home Rule Charter 
Annual Executive Group 1 
Allowance 

$10,000 Miami-Dade County 
Executive Benefits Program 

Basic Life Insurance $100,000 
 

Resolution 771-05 

Annual Car Allowance $9,600 Rate Established in FY 2005-06 Budget 
Annual Expense Allowance $24,000 Rate Established in FY 2000-01 Budget 
Annual 401(a) Retirement 
Contribution 

$11,500 Rate Established in FY 2001-02 Budget 

Annual Physical Exam 
 

Comprehensive Executive Physical Miami-Dade County 
Executive Benefits Program 

Elected Officials Retirement 
Health Insurance Program 

County paid Retiree Health Insurance Coverage (single 
coverage only) if the commissioner has served at least 
five years. The County will continue to pay its 
contribution for a maximum of 15 years, or to age 65, 
whichever is earlier. 

Program Established in 1992 and 
amended by Resolution 1405-04 

Elected Officials Retirement 
Health Insurance Program 

Elected officials who have served 16 years or more are 
entitled to receive County provided coverage under a 
program offered to supplement Medicare 

Program Established in October 1992 
and amended by Resolution 1589-94 

Optional Benefits at 
Commissioner’s Expense 

  

Optional Life Insurance $100,000 Per Metropolitan Life Insurance 
Contract 

Retiree Life Insurance Basic life coverage of $100,000 at retirement if at least 
one four year term has been completed. 

Resolution 771-05 

Executive Long Term Disability 
Insurance 

$7,000 Per month Per Metropolitan Life Disability Contract 

401(a) Pick-up Plan 3%, 6%, or 10% of gross salary  Miami-Dade County Executive Benefits 
Program – ICMA-RC Plan Amendment 
2001 

 



Roll and Population Info

Year Tax Roll Population
2005 175,222,910,000        2,376,014    73,746.58$    
2010 192,268,348,000        2,507,180    76,687.09$    
2015* 198,819,937,000        2,724,623    72,971.54$    

* estimate provided by MD Planning Division of RER ‐ see link
http://www.miamidade.gov/planzone/Library/research/PopProj2006‐2030.pdf



 
 

Other Business 
 

































lmejia
Text Box


	Agenda - CRTF Meeting May 23, 2012
	CRTF Meeting Minutes - May 17, 2012
	County Attorney's Reports
	Technical Amendments to Charter

	Issues of Study
	Hospital Governance Taskforce Final Report
	Transmittal Letter
	Table of Contents
	Executive Summary
	I. Introduction
	A. Mission
	B. Membership
	Table 1 - Hospital Governance Taskforce Membership List

	C. Background
	D. Process
	E. Governance Models

	II. Considerations re: Surtax, Sunshine, Sovereign Immunity, Public Records
	III. Presentations and Interviews
	Table 2 - Presentations and Interviews

	IV. Recommendations
	Overview
	Mission
	Board Composition
	Ethics
	Legal Structure and Governance
	Authorities and Responsibilities Retained by the Board of County Commissioners
	Authorities and Responsibilities Reserved to Health System Governing Board
	Culture
	Implementation
	Comments

	Appn A - Resolution No. R-30-11
	Appn B - Meeting Agendas
	HGT Agenda 3-28-11
	HGT Agenda 4-7-11
	HGT Agenda 4-14-11
	HGT Agenda 4-21-11
	HGT Agenda 4-28-11
	HGT Agenda 5-5-11
	HGT Agenda 5-12-11

	Appn C - Meeting Minutes 
	3-28-11 HGT Meeting Minutes
	4-5-11 Sunshine Meeting Minutes
	4-7-11 HGT Meeting Minutes 
	4-11-11 Sunshine Meeting Minutes
	4-14-11 HGT Meeting Minutes
	4-21-11 HGT Meeting Minutes
	4-28-11 HGT Meeting Minutes
	5-5-11 HGT Meeting Minutes
	5-12-11 HGT Meeting Minutes

	Appn D - List of Trust Decisions Subject to the Commission's Approval (Prior or Subsequent) or the Commission's Override
	Appn E - Legal Issues Attendant to Current Financial Exigencies at PHT
	Appn F - Legal Opinion Regarding Steward's Proposal for Acquisition of Jackson Health System
	Appn G - Sunshine Laws, Public Records,Sovereign Immunity and Public Benefit Corporation
	Appn H - Legal Opinion Regarding Reso R-392-11 Creating a Financial Recovery Board
	Appn I - Background Information Sheets for Healthcare Systems
	Boston Medical Center
	Cook County Health & Hospitals System
	LA County Dept of Health Services
	Grady Memorial Health System
	Harborview Medical Center
	Health Care District of Palm Beach County
	Tampa General Hospital
	Truman Medical Centers

	Appn J - Governance Options Spreadsheet
	Appn K - South Florida Acute Care Hospitals-Federal, State and Local Funding Sources
	Appn L - Dissenting View of a Taskforce Member

	Memo. regarding Salary and Other Remuneration for BCC - May 3, 2010
	Summary of Compensation and Benefits for BCC
	Property Tax Roll and Population Information

	Other Business
	Feedback Received through the website and email for the period between May 15 - 22, 2012 




